To: Members of the Cabinet

Public Document :,

ck
50 OXFORDSHIRE
Y COUNTY COUNCIL

Notice of a Meeting of the Cabinet

Tuesday, 25 April 2017 at 2.00 pm

Rooms 1&2 - County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND

¢ Clot

Peter Clark

Chief Executive April 2017

Committee Sue Whitehead

Officer: Tel: 07393 001213; E-Mail: sue.whitehead@oxfordshire.gov.uk
Membership

Councillors

lan Hudspeth
Rodney Rose

Mrs Judith Heathcoat
Nick Carter

Melinda Tilley
Steve Harrod
Lorraine Lindsay-Gale

David Nimmo Smith
Lawrie Stratford
Hilary Hibbert-Biles

Leader of the Council
Deputy Leader of the Council
Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care

Cabinet Member for Local Government, Business,
ICT & Customer Services

Cabinet Member for Children & Family Services
Cabinet Member for Education

Cabinet Member for Property, Cultural & Community
Services

Cabinet Member for Environment
Cabinet Member for Finance
Cabinet Member for Public Health

The Agenda is attached. Decisions taken at the meeting
will become effective at the end of the working day on Thursday 4 May 2017
unless called in by that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee.
Copies of this Notice, Agenda and supporting papers are circulated

to all Members of the County Council.

Date of next meeting: 23 May 2017

County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk Fax: 01865 783195 Media Enquiries 01865 323870




Declarations of Interest

The duty to declare.....

Under the Localism Act 2011 it is a criminal offence to

(a) fail to register a disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 days of election or co-option (or re-
election or re-appointment), or

(b) provide false or misleading information on registration, or

(c) participate in discussion or voting in a meeting on a matter in which the member or co-opted
member has a disclosable pecuniary interest.

Whose Interests must be included?

The Act provides that the interests which must be notified are those of a member or co-opted

member of the authority, or

e those of a spouse or civil partner of the member or co-opted member;

e those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as husband/wife

e those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as if they were civil
partners.

(in each case where the member or co-opted member is aware that the other person has the

interest).

What if | remember that | have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the Meeting?.

The Code requires that, at a meeting, where a member or co-opted member has a disclosable
interest (of which they are aware) in any matter being considered, they disclose that interest to
the meeting. The Council will continue to include an appropriate item on agendas for all
meetings, to facilitate this.

Although not explicitly required by the legislation or by the code, it is recommended that in the
interests of transparency and for the benefit of all in attendance at the meeting (including
members of the public) the nature as well as the existence of the interest is disclosed.

A member or co-opted member who has disclosed a pecuniary interest at a meeting must not
participate (or participate further) in any discussion of the matter; and must not participate in any
vote or further vote taken; and must withdraw from the room.

Members are asked to continue to pay regard to the following provisions in the code that “You
must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an advantage or
disadvantage on any person including yourself’ or “You must not place yourself in situations
where your honesty and integrity may be questioned.....”.

Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting should you have any doubt
about your approach.

List of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests:
Employment (includes“any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit
or gain’.), Sponsorship, Contracts, Land, Licences, Corporate Tenancies, Securities.

For a full list of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and further Guidance on this matter please see
the Guide to the New Code of Conduct and Register of Interests at Members’ conduct guidelines.
http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/ or contact
Glenn Watson on 07776 997946 or glenn.watson@oxfordshire.gov.uk for a hard copy of the
document.

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible
before the meeting.

v, oY)
recycled paper TN 5
G reaeledpaper 156G




AGENDA

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest
- guidance note opposite

Minutes

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 14 March 2017 (CA3 (to be
circulated separately)) and to receive information arising from them.

Questions from County Councillors

Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two working
days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the Cabinet’s
delegated powers.

The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one meeting is
limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary question at the
meeting) and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in total. As with
questions at Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the end of this item
will receive a written response.

Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and will be
the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such other councillor
or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not be the subject of
further debate at this meeting. Questions received after the despatch of the agenda, but
before the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of Addenda circulated at the
meeting, together with any written response which is available at that time.

Petitions and Public Address

Communities Fund (Pages 1 - 22)

Cabinet Member: Leader
Forward Plan Ref: 2017/038
Contact: Sarah Jelley, Senior Policy Officer Tel: 07554 103437

Report by Assistant Chief Executive (CA6).

In February 2017 as part of the budget papers council agreed £250k 'one off' funding
for a pilot communities fund. This report outlines the proposed approach and options

v, 5y,
recycled paper TX )
& recetrper

&



-2-

for a locally managed grant scheme and the draft grant guidance and criteria.

The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to approve the Grant Guidance, Grant
Application and Locality Meeting Terms of Reference.

2016/17 Financial Monitoring & Business Strategy Delivery Report -
February 2017 (Pages 23 - 54)

Cabinet Member: Finance

Forward Plan Ref: 2016/129

Contact: Katy Jurczyszyn, Strategic Finance Manager (Finance, Strategy & Monitoring)
Tel: 07584 909518

Report by Director of Finance (CA7).

This report is the penultimate for the 2016/17 financial year reporting on revenue and
capital spending against budget allocations, including virements between budget heads
and capital programme approvals.

The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to:

(a) note the report;

(b) approve the 2017/18 virements set out in Annex 2b;

(c) approve the debt write off in paragraph 43;

(d) note the impairment of the debt detailed in paragraph 44:

(e) note the Treasury Management lending list at Annex 4;

(f) approve the Fees and Charges set out in Annex 6;

(g) approve the changes to the Capital Programme set out in Annex 7b and 7c;

(h) approve the contractual commitment for construction of the Didcot Great
Western Park Primary School (Chalkhill), with a total budget of £7.150m as
set out in paragraph 65; and

(i) approve the £3.3m National Productivity Investment Fund Programme set
out in paragraph 67 for inclusion in the capital programme.

Adopt Thames Valley (Pages 55 - 62)

Cabinet Member: Children & Family Services

Forward Plan Ref: 2017/012

Contact: Hannah Farncombe, Deputy Director - Corporate Parenting & Safeguarding
Tel: (01865) 815273

Report by Director for Children’s Services (CAS8).
The report seeks approval for plans for Oxfordshire County Council to join and host the
Regional Adoption Agency (Adopt Thames Valley) as a shared service with the other

partner authorities.

‘In principle’ approval was given by Cabinet in November 2016, but it was agreed that a
final decision would come back to Cabinet once all partners had confirmed the detail of:

— the budget and funding formula for Local Authority contributions;



10.

-3-

— scope of services (service specification); and
— legal governance structure.

The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to:

(a) agree to join and host Adopt Thames Valley; and

(b) If not concluded by 25 April Cabinet meeting, Cabinet are asked to give
delegated approval for the transitional budget arrangements to the Director
of Children’s Services in consultation with the Lead Member.

Fit for Future Progress Report (Pages 63 - 68)

Cabinet Member: Deputy Leader
Forward Plan Ref: 2017/013
Contact: Lorna Baxter, Director for Finance Tel: 07393 001218

Report by Director for Finance (CA9).

This report sets out an update on the Council's new transformation programme, Fit for
the Future. It sets out the structure of the programme, progress on the programme to
date and the investment funding to deliver the programme.

The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to:

(a) note the report;

(b) note the use of the £3m Transition Fund and £0.4.m from Children’s
Services to support the Fit for the Future Programme; and

(c) approve the creation of a £3m budget provision in the Capital Programme
to support the Fit for the Future Programme.

Business Management & Monitoring Report for Quarter 3 - April 2017
(Pages 69 - 88)

Cabinet Member: Deputy Leader
Forward Plan Ref: 2016/130
Contact: lan Dyson, Assistant Chief Finance Officer (Assurance) Tel: 07393 001250

Report by Assistant Chief Finance Officer (Assurance) (CA10).

The report provides details of performance for quarter three 2016-17 for the Cabinet to
consider. The report is required so that the Cabinet can monitor the performance of the
Council in key service areas and be assured that progress is being made to improve
areas where performance is below the expected level.

Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to note the performance set out in this report, and
the ongoing work to improve business management and reporting.



-4-

Delegated Powers - April 2017

Cabinet Member: Leader
Forward Plan Ref: 2016/131
Contact: Sue Whitehead, Principal Committee Officer Tel: 07939 001213

To report on a quarterly basis any executive decisions taken under the specific powers
and functions delegated under the terms of Part 7.2 (Scheme of Delegation to Officers)
of the Council’s Constitution — Paragraph 6.3(c)(i). Itis not for scrutiny to call in.

Date Subject Decision Reasons for
Urgency
23 February 2017 | Sapling Project, Approved an To ensure
Recovery Based | exemption from the | continuity of
Supported tendering service provision
Accommodation | requirements under | while the new
OCC’s Contract service is being

Procedure Rules for | procured.
the grant of a
further 12 month
contract until 2
October 2018 to
Oxford Homeless
Pathway Limited to
provide drug and
alcohol recovery-
based support
services to the
Council for Service
Users to help
maintain their
abstinence from
drugs and/or
alcohol dependency

(“the Sapling

Project Contract”) at

a cost of

£41,590.00.

3 March 2017 Provision of Care | Approved an | To ensure that

Services for exemption from the | there is service
People with a tendering continuity and
Learning requirements  under | nrovision for the
Disability OCC’s Contract | rogigents during

Procedure Rules for the
the grant of an|.

extension to the Impr_O\_/ement/re-
current contract to 16 | Provision
January 2018 to | Programme
Camden Society to
provide Care
Services for People
with a  Learning

provided by the
Camden Society




12.

Disability at a cost of

£465,014.
10 April 2017 Provision of Approved an To ensure
Learning exemption from the | continuity of
Disability Respite | full tendering service provision
Services — Saxon | requirements under | while the new
Way OCC'’s Contract service is being

Procedure Rules for | procured.
the grant of an
award of contract
from 10™ April 2017
to 9™ May 2018 to
Brandon Trust to
provide respite
services for people
with a Learning
Disability from
premises in Saxon
Way in Oxford City
at an estimated cost
of £518,000

Forward Plan and Future Business (Pages 89 - 90)

Cabinet Member: All
Contact Officer: Sue Whitehead, Committee Services Manager Tel: 07393 001213

The Cabinet Procedure Rules provide that the business of each meeting at the Cabinet
is to include “updating of the Forward Plan and proposals for business to be conducted
at the following meeting”. Items from the Forward Plan for the immediately forthcoming
meetings of the Cabinet appear in the Schedule at CA12. This includes any updated
information relating to the business for those meetings that has already been identified
for inclusion in the next Forward Plan update.

The Schedule is for noting, but Cabinet Members may also wish to take this opportunity
to identify any further changes they would wish to be incorporated in the next Forward
Plan update.

The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to note the items currently identified for
forthcoming meetings.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6

Division(s):

CABINET- 25 April

Communities Fund

Report by Maggie Scott, Assistant Chief Executive

Introduction

In February 2017, Council agreed to set aside £250,000 in 2017/18 for a pilot
communities fund as a result of the county council’s share of the council tax
collection fund surplus being more than forecast.

This approach supports the council’s commitment to a new way of delivering
in communities across Oxfordshire.

Communities Fund Approach

Consideration has been given to the most appropriate way to administer the
communities fund by devolving decision making to a local level.

As the fund is for a ‘one off pilot’ all funds allocated in year must be spent
within the financial year.

It is proposed that to keep the scheme simple that the funding is allocated to
each of the council’s locality areas as follows:

Locality Amount

Oxford £50,000
Bicester & Kidlington £25,000
Banbury £25,000
Witney, Burford & Carterton £25,000
Woodstock & Chipping Norton £25,000
Faringdon & Wantage £25,000
Abingdon £25,000
Didcot & Henley £25,000
Thame, Wheatley & Watlington £25,000
TOTAL £250,000
6. The purpose of the £250k communities fund is to provide grants for

sustainable community solutions for communities to bid for matched funding
schemes or projects to supplement services following changes/reductions.

Any proposals for funding will need to demonstrate sustainability and the
ability to self-fund in the long term if it is an ongoing project. This will be a key

Page 1



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

CA6

criterion for assessing all applications. In addition match funding is strongly
encouraged, and we will be asking all applicants to demonstrate match
funding.

Grant Criteria

All proposals will need to demonstrate sustainable community solutions to bid
for matched funding schemes or projects to supplement services following
changes/reductions.

The following are the key criteria used when assessing proposals:

The following are the key criteria used when assessing proposals:
Ability to self-fund in the long-term, as outlined in the application
Clearly defined costs and timescales for implementation

Evidence of the need for the project including community buy in
Demonstrating the impact of service changes/reductions
Engagement, partnership working and collaboration

Projects must benefit Oxfordshire communities, be inclusive and
provide good value for money.

o To what extent we can have confidence that the project will have a
lasting impact, beyond the funding period.

The full list of criteria is contained within the guidance set out in Annex 1 along
with the types of organisations that can apply and also the types of projects
and organisations that are not eligible to apply for funding.

Funding will be awarded on a one-off basis and must be spent within the
financial year 2017/18.

Successful applicants will be expected to comply fully with any monitoring
requests from the council and signing of the application form at Annex 2
and/or funding agreement will be viewed as acceptance of these requests.

Applicants, along with their local county councillor will be notified by e-mail of
the decision if they have been unable to attend the locality meeting.

Any unspent grant funding will be recovered by the county council.

Process

Management of the communities fund would be through the Policy Team.
Applications would be received into the Policy Team for acknowledgement of
receipt, recording and passing to the Locality Lead to summarise as part of the
locality meeting papers.

The Locality Lead officers will also provide policy support to the chair and local
councillors in their role around the grant scheme.

Page 2



CA6

17. To enable councillors to make informed decision policy officers will seek
service area comments on suitability/viability of the project. If applicable the
service area would also be asked to attend the locality meeting to clarify if
there is any uncertainty.

18.  All applications received for the locality will be sent to locality members a week
in advance of the locality meeting.

19.  Councillors will have an opportunity to allocate funds in their area, at the
quarterly locality meetings, in July and October 2017 and January 2018.

20. It would be hoped that locality members would work towards developing and
agreeing the priorities for the area and the grant making is based on these
previously agreed priorities. Members are encouraged to pool resources at
the locality level to address local priorities in a sustainable way.

21.  Anoutline of how it is envisaged that the process will work is below:

Member Involvement Back Office Support

Locality Members to
agree the frequency of
assessing applications

—

Grant Applications
received by Policy team

I

Applications sent to
Locality Members one
week in advance of the
meeting

l

Applications sent to
Service Area for comment

Locality Meeting

Applicants can attend for
this item only

22.  To ensure effective and efficient use of officer resources it is proposed that the

Locality Meeting
recommendations to fund
returned to accountable
officer

|

Grant Agreements, Grant
Payments, Monitoring
undertaken by
accountable officer

governance should be kept simple.

Page 3




23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

CA6

The communities fund will be the first item on a locality meeting agenda
allowing for applicants and/or interested parties to participate in this part of the
meeting should they choose to. Locality members will then get a chance to
discuss and agree which applications they want to fund. It is hoped that
consensus would be reached and if not then it would go to a vote.

The responsible officer would them put into effect the recommendations of the
locality allowing for lawfulness.

This will reduce the amount of time in the process and to increase the speed
at which applicants are informed and paid grant monies.

It is proposed to amend the terms of reference for the locality meetings to take

into consideration the communities fund grant scheme. The proposed changes
to the terms of reference are shown in Annex 3.

Financial and Staff Implications

The £250,000 communities fund is ‘one off’ funding which must be spent in the
financial year 2017/18.

The £250,000 will be accounted for separately and reported via the Financial
Monitoring and Business Strategy delivery report.

The grant scheme will be managed by Sarah Jelley in accordance with the
financial regulations.

Equalities Implications

Councillors will need to be mindful of equalities in determining how the funding
should be allocated.

RECOMMENDATION

The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to approve the Grant Guidance, Grant
Application and Locality Meeting Terms of Reference

MAGGIE SCOTT
Assistant Chief Executive

Background papers: None

Annexes: Annex 1Grant Guidance

Annex 2: Grant Application

Annex 3: Locality Meeting Terms of Reference

Contact Officer: Sarah Jelley, sarah.jelley@oxfordshire.gov.uk, 07554 103437
March 2017

Page 4



Annex 1

Guidance Notes
Communities Fund

February 2017

\ Background \

In February 2017 the council agreed £250k one-off funding initially for a pilot
Communities Fund for communities to bid for matched funding schemes or projects
to supplement services following changes/reductions.

Further details about the council’s decision are available at;
http://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=116&MId=4818&Ver
=4

This approach supports the council’'s commitment to a new way of delivering
localism in communities across Oxfordshire.

| Our Approach |

The purpose of this £250k communities fund is to provide grants for sustainable
community solutions for communities to bid for matched funding schemes or projects
to supplement services following changes/reductions.

In awarding the grants, our approach will be flexible, recognising the different needs
across the county. You should discuss your proposal at an early stage with your
County Councillor and seek their support for your proposal.

You can use the postcode search on www.writetothem.com to find your local
councillor. Further information about contacting your local councillor is available on
the Council’s website.

If your project impacts a wider area, you can put through a joint bid supported by
multiple councillors.

Any proposals for funding will need to demonstrate sustainability and the ability to
self-fund in the long term if it is an ongoing project. This will be a key criterion for
assessing all applications. In addition match funding is strongly encouraged, and we
will be asking all applicants to demonstrate match funding.

Applicants can apply at any point during the financial year 2017/18 and applications
will be assessed at one of the quarterly locality meetings.

Page 1 of 5
Page 5



\ What do we fund? (eligibility criteria)

Funding is available for sustainable community solutions to supplement services
following changes/service reductions. As the county council is moving towards a
more locally sustainable delivery model we will be looking for projects that benefit the
whole community, such as community transport schemes.

To make sure you have covered all the relevant areas in your application form, we
have put together a suggested checklist:

Description of the project/ activity

Needs analysis

Desired outcomes & beneficiaries

Costs

Sources of funding & long-term sustainability
Performance Measures (how results will be monitored)
Governance

Grant criteria

Ability to self-fund in the long-term, as outlined in the application

Clearly defined costs and timescales for implementation

Evidence of the need for the project including community buy in
Demonstrating the impact of service changes/reductions

Engagement, partnership working and collaboration

Projects must benefit Oxfordshire communities, be inclusive and provide
good value for money.

¢ To what extent we can have confidence that the project will have a lasting
impact, beyond the funding period.

We want to see projects which are rooted in their communities and which have
grown out of a specific local need. All applicants must work closely with their local
community to ensure their project is properly connected locally, responds to
recognised need and does not duplicate other provision. We would also ask to see
evidence of a strong buy-in from the local community, and any successful initiative
would need to be accessible, inclusive and open to all.

Funding will only be awarded on a one-off basis and must be spent within the
financial year it is awarded (end of March 2018).

Page 2 of 5
Page 6



Who can apply:

In order to be deemed eligible for funding, applying organisations must have a
committee and/or a constitution or appropriate rules setting out aims and
objectives and how the group will operate, and a bank account’.

e Not-for-profit community groups

e Town and parish councils

e Schools (in the case of fee paying schools, only those that have charitable
status)

Social enterprises

Charity organisations

Community associations

Community Interest Companies

Companies limited by guarantee (which have exclusively non-profit making,
community benefit objects)

Parent teacher associations

Cooperatives

Friendly societies

Youth Clubs

| What don’t we fund?

Organisations:

Individuals or sole traders

Profit-making organisations

Organisations not established in the UK

Organisations that give funds to other charities, individuals or other
organisations

2]

Projects:

Projects that duplicate an already existing service

Activities which a statutory body is responsible for

Activities with a religious or political purpose

Activities that contradict or act against any of the Council’'s agreed policies
such as Equalities and Safer Recruitment, or fail to comply with all the other
relevant statutory requirements, such as health and safety legislation

W W

Please note that this is not an exhaustive list and if you are not sure whether you are
eligible for funding you should get in touch with us at: localities@oxfordshire.gov. uk.

! Please note we will not make any payments into individuals’ bank accounts, so it is very important
that your group has a bank account.

Page 3 of 5
Page 7



| How to apply

Application process:

1) Discuss your proposal with your local county councillor

2) Submit your application to localities@oxfordshire.gov.uk

3) Applications will be considered at the next available locality meeting
4) Decision

5) Notification to bidders

We encourage applicants to contact us early with their expressions of interest or any
questions they might have, to avoid any delays in the council assessing the bids and
making a decision.

The Communities Fund application form can be downloaded from our website:
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/communitybudgets.

Please ensure you complete all the fields of the application form. You may also
attach additional documents in support of your project.

The application form must be physically signed by the applicant. We cannot
accept typed signatures.

\ Deadline for Submission

The deadline for submission of applications is 31 December 2017 to allow for
consideration at the final locality meeting of the financial year which will take place in
January. Funding is awarded on a rolling basis so early applications are strongly
encouraged to submit their application early.

| How will applications be assessed?

We will assess your application against the key criteria set out above and we may
also seek feedback from community stakeholders.

The county councillors at the locality meeting will review all applications and then
make their decisions. If they feel there is insufficient evidence they may defer the
decision to the next meeting pending further work.

Decisions can be called-in by the Performance Scrutiny Committee, which can
decide to approve the decision, ask the Locality Meeting to reconsider, refer it to full
council for further debate, or require further information of further work to be done.

Page 4 of 5
Page 8



| Awarding the grant

Applicants, along with their local county councillor, will be notified by email of the
Locality Meeting decision within 14 working days of the decision being made.

Successful applicants will be asked to sign a legal agreement with the council (for
any grants over £5,000). Once the legal agreement is signed, we will then transfer
the funding into the organisation’s bank account.

For larger grants/ where appropriate, funding might be phased depending on the
outcomes achieved following the first stage of delivery.

Unsuccessful applicants will be offered feedback on their proposal and, where
possible, we will work with organisations to help them identify alternative funding
opportunities.

| Monitoring

Successful applicants are expected to comply fully with any monitoring requests from
the Council and must agree to this when signing the funding request form.

All successful applicants need to be prepared for a review of their project.

This may include:

* Receipts recording how the money was spent

* Reports on the activity funded

o Feedback from individuals impacted

* Any other record of the activity funded (e.g. promotional flyers and posters)
Successful applicants will be strongly encouraged to keep us informed about the
progress of their projects. Any setbacks to the implementation of the projects should
be reported to the Policy Team. Delivery of the projects will be monitored as per
milestones identified in the business case/ project proposal.

Any unspent grant funding will be recovered by the county council.

| Contact us

Sarah Jelley

Policy Team

Oxfordshire County Council
County Hall

New Road,

Oxford OX1 1ND

Email: localities@oxfordshire.gov.uk
Telephone: 07554 103437

Page 5 of 5
Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Annex 2

GRANT APPLICATION FORM

Communities Fund 2017/18

| The Scheme and Guidance

All Locality meetings in Oxfordshire have a community budget for 2017/2018 for
communities to bid for matched funding schemes or projects to supplement services
following changes/reductions to support the projects that matter most to their local
communities.

The scheme reflects Oxfordshire County Council’s (the “Council’s) commitment to a
new way of delivering localism in communities across Oxfordshire.

Prospective applicants should contact their local councillor to check the feasibility of
their proposal before submitting an application. Use the postcode search
on www.writetothem.com to find your local councillor.

Please read carefully the guidance notes available on the Council's website to
check whether your organisation or the activity you wish to fund is eligible for funding
under the scheme’s criteria.

| The Application Process

Eligible organisations can apply for funding having discussed their proposal with their
local councillor, gaining their support. A completed signed for should be sent to the
contact below.

The application form must be physically signed by the applicant. \We cannot
accept typed signatures.

Once an application is submitted to the Policy Team, it will be put forward to the next
available Locality Meeting where it will be reviewed and a decision taken. Applicants
can expect to be contacted about their application within 14 working days of the
decision.

APPLICATIONS MUST BE SUBMITTED BY 31 DECEMBER 2017.
Funding is awarded on a rolling basis, so early applications are strongly encouraged.

| Contacting Us

Sarah Jelley

Policy Team

Oxfordshire County Council
County Hall

New Road,

Oxford OX1 1ND

Page 1 of 9
Page 11



Email: localities@oxfordshire.gov.uk
Telephone: 07554 103437

Page 2 of 9
Page 12



TO BE FILLED IN BY APPLICANT

Name of your organisation:

Description of your organisation:

Organisation Address:

If a registered Charity, please specify nhumber

Contact Name

Telephone No.

Email

Payment Details

Please provide your organisation’s payment details (note: payments will not be made
to an individual’s bank account).

Account Name

Bank or Building Society Name

Account number

Sort code

Page 3 of 9
Page 13




ACTIVITY OVERVIEW

1. Activity Name

2. Activity Summary

Please describe the activity you wish to fund.

3. Activity Dates

Please state when you would spend the funding. Please include start and end date
for the project and major milestones, if any.

PLEASE NOTE: ALL FUNDING MUST BE SPENT WITHIN THE YEAR
AWAREDED (END OF MARCH 2018)

Page 4 of 9
Page 14




4. Analysis of Needs

Please explain how the activity will address a recognised need in your community.

5. Outcomes

Please state the outcomes that you expect to achieve by the end of your project.

6. Beneficiaries

What are the key beneficiary groups you will target with this funding?

7. Success Measures

How will you monitor progress towards the achievement of your outcomes?

8. Sustainability

How will you ensure the sustainability of the activity? How will the activity be funded
in the long term?

Page 5 of 9
Page 15




9. Costs

Description Cost Grant Request

Please provide us with a breakdown of costs of
your proposed activity. E.g. Volunteer Training,
Transport, Information & Promotion, Equipment &
Materials, Refurbishment eftc.

TOTAL

10. Other funding received

Please include details of any other grant funding you have received, including any
awarded by Oxfordshire County Council.

Page 6 of 9
Page 16




Applicant Agreement

The organisation undertakes that:

The information provided on this form is true and accurate.

Any funds awarded will be spent in accordance with the details provided
above (particularly in the ‘About your project’ section).

For all projects £5,000 and over, or if requested, it will provide details of how
funding has been spent and cooperate fully with any other monitoring process
undertaken by the Council to ensure the proper use of funds.

It will advise the Council of any potential difficulties in complying with this
agreement as soon as possible so that mutually acceptable solutions can be
found e.g. if funds cannot be spent in year.

Funding awarded will not be spent on activity that does not comply the
abovementioned policies of the Council.

Details of the project will be listed on the Council's website and may be
communicated to a wider audience (e.g. via the local press).

The funds awarded will be reimbursed to the Council if the organisation is in
breach of these terms.

The project will be carried out in compliance with all relevant laws.

We hereby agree to these terms:

Name:

Signed:

Date:

On behalf of (organisation):

Please ensure that you have signed the application form before submission to
the Policy Team. Please note that while we can accept scanned signatures, we
cannot accept typed signatures.

Page 7 of 9
Page 17




Service Area Recommendation:

Completed by:

Date:

Page 18

Page 8 of 9




Page 9 of 9
Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Annex 3

Locality Meetings - Terms of reference

The aim of locality meetings is to provide an-infermala setting for members and
officers to meet to discuss existing and future service priorities, issues and plans
within their local area.

The locality meeting will also be responsible for the communities grant scheme
allocation. Fulfilment of this function can only be carried out in accordance with the

following:

That in the event of voting, the chairman has a casting vote
That although not subject to the scrutiny call in process, at any point the process
may be subject to review by scrutiny. aspart-efnermal-scrutiny-arrangements

Membership

Those County Councillors whose divisions are within the determined locality.

Purpose

¢ For members to share information on local issues and where relevant provide
feedback from their locality roles.

e To discuss areas of concern or thought to be a priority by County Councillors
in the locality group.

e For officers to obtain comment and feedback upon services and
commissioning intentions with specific local impact.

e To raise County Councillor awareness of county council service issues
relevant to a locality.

e County council officers will be required to consider feedback from Councillors
about the local impact of the council’s plans and services.

e To discuss the cCounty Ceunciller-allocation of communities grant scheme,
agreeing the priorities for funding. where-available-such-as-in-204314-the
Aoce-Stowarde—=und-ond-Counsllor Sompanatb-Badgois

e Locality groups are not part of the council’s formal decision making process,
but play a key part by enabling information to be imparted and discussed.

¢ To nominate councillors to take on specific locality roles such as Military
Cehampions for local bases and membership of local partnerships.

Meetings
e Will usually be held on a quarterly basis at a time and location mutually
agreed.

¢ Chairmen and lead officers will work together to plan agendas.
e The agenda shall be approved by the Chairman.

Page 1 of 2
Page 21



¢ Minutes from the meetings will be_made available on request.applicable

circulated to all Locality Chairmen and to Cabinet.

Support
The CCMT lead and Senior-Lead Officer (Chief-Executive’s OfficeCorporate
Resources) will provide support to the meeting and will be responsible for:

e Managing agendas and papers

e Producing minutes

e Ensuring service officers follow up actions agreed at meetings

e Managing the communities fund grant scheme local liaison

Page 2 of 2
Page 22



Agenda ltem 7

CABINET - 25 APRIL 2017

2016/17 FINANCIAL MONITORING &
BUSINESS STRATEGY DELIVERY REPORT

Report by the Director of Finance

Introduction

1. This report is the penultimate for the 2016/17 financial year. The final
directorate variations will be set out in the Provisional Outturn Report to
Cabinet in June 2017. The forecast directorate position for the year is
currently an anticipated overspend of +£5.2m (+1.3%) against a net
budget of £411.4m as shown in the table below. This compares to an
anticipated overspend of +£5.6m (+1.4%) reported to Cabinet in February

2017.
2. Directorates have continued to work to reduce the forecast overspend by
management action which included a freeze on non-essential

recruitment. The on-going impact of the increased demand particularly in
placements for Looked After Children and legal costs, Special
Educational Needs Home to School Transport, and additional funding to
address ICT pressures have been reflected in the 2017/18 budget agreed
by Council in February 2017.

3. It is anticipated that the use of general balances will be required to bring
the budget back into balance. The 2017/18 budget includes an additional
contribution to balances of £2.7m (based on the position at the end of
December) to maintain them at the risk assessed level. Based on the
current position, a contribution of £1.9m is required leaving £0.8m
available as additional contingency in 2017/18. The final position will be
set out in the Provisional Outturn Report to Cabinet in June 2017.

Directorate Latest Forecast | Forecast | Forecast
Budget Outturn Outturn Outturn
2016/17 | 2016/17 | Variance | Variance
2016/17 | 2016/17
£m £m £m %
Children, Education & Families (CE&F) 106.5 113.7 +7.2 +6.8
Social & Community Services (S&CS) 212.5 212.4 -01 +0.0
Environment & Economy (E&E) 70.5 68.3 -2.2 -3.1
Corporate Services (CS) 21.9 22.2 +0.3 +1.1
Public Health (*) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total 411.4 416.6 +5.2 +1.3
Public Health (*)
Expenditure 32.5 31.7 -0.8 -2.6
Grant and Other Income & Transfer to -32.5 -31.7 +0.8 +2.6
Reserves
Total 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

' Public Health is funded by a ring-fenced grq&agéz.zgfrom the Department of Health.




10.

11.

12.

13.

CA7
The following annexes are attached:

Annex 1 Original and Latest Budget for 2016/17
Annex 2 2016/17 Virements & 2017/18 Virements

Annex 3 Treasury Management Lending List
Annex 4 Forecast Earmarked Reserves
Annex 5 Forecast General Balances

Annex 6 Fees and Charges

Annex 7 Capital Programme Monitoring

Directorate reports setting out the detail behind this report are available
from the contact officers named at the end of this report or in the
Members’ Resource Centre.

Part 1 - Revenue Budget

Children, Education & Families
The directorate is forecasting an overspend of +£7.2m, which represents
a variance of 6.8% against budget.

CEF1 Education & Learning
The Education & Learning service is forecasting to overspend by +£1.7m.

The current forecast for SEN transport in 2016/17 is an overspend of
+£1.6m. As reported previously, the overspend relates to a combination
of growth in demand for services and an increase in the average cost per
passenger journey. The increase cost of passenger journeys arises from
an increase in the number of contracts and more single passenger
journeys. There remains a risk around this budget with demand
continuing to change.

CEF2 Children’s Social Care

Children’s Social Care is forecast to overspend by +£3.9m. This is after a
£1m transfer from CEF reserves and the use of £1m from the corporate
contingency.

The growth in the number of children requiring services from Children’s
Social Care has increased workloads across most services. The majority
of the overspend in Management and Central Costs (+£0.7m) is the result
of significant growth in the legal costs relating to Children's Social Care.

The continuing growth in demand for Children’s Social Care is a key
concern. In January the Council commissioned iIMPOWER to work with
the service to gain a better understanding of the drivers for the increased
demand in Children’s Social Care. The review is due to conclude in late
April. Key tasks and actions arising from the review will be implemented
as part of the Council’s Transformation Programme.

Referral and Assessment are forecasting an overspend of +£0.5m due to
increasing agency staff.

Looked After Children and Leaving Care are forecasting an overspend of
+£0.8m based on current client numbers. There is a risk demand will

Page 24



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

CA7
increase over the remainder of the year and careful monitoring will
continue to identify any further growth in the forecast.

An overspend of +£4.2m is forecast on the Placements budget. The
overspend is partly caused by the completion of the new Children’s
Homes being behind schedule thereby delaying the savings which will
arise from reducing the number of external placements. The forecast
includes +£0.2m which it is estimated could arise from new placements
during the rest of the year.

The Asylum service is reporting a forecast overspend of +£0.9m. This is
due to the significant shortfall between the cost of each client and the
grant received from the Home Office. However the forecast has reduced
since the last report following a lower number of transfers under the
National Transfer Protocol than had been forecast.

The Family Solutions Service are forecasting an overspend of +£0.5m
due to use of agency staff and a planned increase in establishment prior
to the for the move to the new Integrated Children’s Service, which
commenced on 1 March 2017.

The Early Intervention Service (including Hubs, Children’s Centres, Youth
and Engagement and Thriving Families) is forecast to underspend by -
£1.7m. This is due to the current remodelling of the service which was
completed on 1 March 2017.

CEF3 Children’s Social Care Countywide Services

Children’s Social Care Countywide is forecast to overspend by +£1.2m,
with the largest elements of this relating to Corporate Parenting (+£0.4m)
and Children with Disabilities (+£0.5m).

Children Education and Families Central Costs is forecast to overspend
by +£0.4m, +£0.3m of this relates to the implementation of the Senior
Management review.

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)

The net overspend on DSG funded services is £0.4m. However the
Council will need to seek Schools Forum approval to utilise -£0.6m
underspend on the early Years Block to partly fund the £1.0m over spend
on the High Needs Block to achieve this position. There are likely to be
other requests to utilise this underspend and therefore the likelihood of
achieving this is unclear at this time. Any remaining overspend would
need to be carried forward to 2017/18.

The National Schools Funding Formula is likely to ring-fence the various
DSG funding blocks making it increasingly difficult to manage any
overspends within DSG going forward. The pressures in High Needs
DSG are expected to continue and increase in future years. A range of
actions are being taken to minimise these costs.

Social & Community Services
The directorate is forecasting an underspend of -£0.1m. Fire & Rescue
and Community Safety are forecasting an underspend of -£1.3m. This is

offset by the Adult Social Carﬁ)overspe%d of +£1.2m. The Adult Social
age



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

CA7
Care forecast is after assuming the use of all of the Pooled Budget
reserves and the Adult Social Care precept, to manage pressures. The
position after the use of this funding is shown in the table below:

Adult Social Care & Joint Commissioning Forecast Outturn Variance
2016/17
£m

Older People & Equipment Pool +0.2
Physical Disabilities Pool +0.9
Learning Disabilities Pool +0.6
Mental Health Pool +0.8
Use of remaining Social Care Precept -1.3
Other (ASC non pool, Joint Commissioning) 0.0
Total Adult Social Care +1.2

S&CS1 Adult Social Care

Adult Social Care includes the Council’s element of the joint Council and
Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (OCCG) variation on the Older
People and Equipment Pooled budget along with the risk based shares of
the variations on the Learning Disabilities, Physical Disabilities and
Mental Health Pooled budgets.

Older People and Equipment Pooled Budgets

The County Council element of the Older People and Equipment Pool is
forecast to overspend by +£0.2m. This is after the permanent
contribution of +£3.0m from the Adult Social Care precept agreed by
Cabinet in September 2016 following the completion of the National
Living Wage consultation and after the use of the Older People pooled
budget reserve. The balance of £1.3m from the Adult Social Care Precept
is required to support the pressures reported against the pooled budgets
and therefore is being wholly spent on pressures within Adult Social Care.

There is continuing pressure within the pool relating to care home
placements where the forecast outturn is an overspend of +£2.6m after
the use of funding from the Adult Social Care Precept. The average
number of new placements is 11 per week, above the budgeted level of
10 per week. This is offset by forecast underspends elsewhere within the
pool.

Physical Disabilities Pooled Budget

The Physical Disabilities Pool is forecast to overspend by +£0.9m. This
is after transferring all of the £0.5m funding held in the Physical
Disabilities Pooled Budget reserve. The underlying forecast reflects
additional demand for home support.

Learning Disabilities Pooled Budget

The Learning Disabilities Pool is forecast to overspend by +£0.6m. This
is after offsetting the risk shared pressure of +£0.9m against the -£0.3m
underspend in relation to the budget that was added to reflect the impact
of the National Living Wage on the costs relating to night time care.
There have been a number of high cost placements late in 2016/17 which
have impacted on the forecast, along with high cost packages for service
users transitioning from Children’s Social Care.

Page 26




28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

CA7
Mental Health Pooled Budget
The Council’s share of the Mental Health Pool overspend is forecast to be
+£0.8m. This reflects the costs of those service users who fall outside of
the Outcomes Based Contract, but eligible for social care. Additional
funding of £0.4m has been added to the budget in 2017/18 to cover the
additional on-going costs that are contributing to the overspend.

Adult Social Care: Non — Pool Services

Non-pooled services are forecast to overspend by +£0.6m. This includes
a forecast overspend of +£0.5m on the Emergency Duty Team and
Approved Mental Health Professional Specialists service. Following the
recent consultation, a new structure will be implemented on 1 April 2017
with the expectation that overall costs will reduce. Joint Commissioning
is forecasting an overspend of +£0.2m. The Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguards service is contributing an underspend of -£0.2m.

Based on the forecast at the end of December, unallocated base budget
funding of -£0.7m will be required to offset pressures in the non-Pool
Services and in Joint Commissioning on a one off basis. This unallocated
funding is likely to need to be allocated to the pooled budgets on a
permanent basis from 2017/18 to support on-going pressures.

SCS3 Fire & Rescue, Emergency Planning and Community Safety

There is a forecast underspend of -£1.3m, for Community Safety, Fire &
Rescue and Emergency Planning. This includes an underspend of -
£0.6m relating to vacancies for whole time firefighters and forecast
underspends on fuel costs and Gypsy and Traveller sites. £0.4m of the
planned contribution to the vehicle replacement reserve will not be made
in 2016/17. Updates will be provided through the Financial Monitoring
Reports in 2017/18 but the intention is that an additional contribution to
replace the funding for future vehicles will be made in 2017/18.

Environment & Economy

The directorate is forecasting a projected underspend of -£2.2m which
represents -3.1% against budget. The forecast underspend in E&E has
increased from -£1.3m in December.

EE2 Commercial Services

Within the property contract, fixed management fees are recovered
through the work carried out during the year. Due to a larger than
average capital programme, the amount of fees recovered through the
capital work has exceeded the fixed cost payable. The surplus of £0.7m
would normally be transferred to the capital reserve but instead will be
used in revenue. In addition, there is an increase in the underspend in
Corporate Facilities Management of a further £0.2m.

Corporate Services

The directorate is forecasting an overspend of +£0.2m which represent
+1.1% against budget. In Corporate Services, the £0.9m overspend in
ICT is being partly offset by underspends as a result of staffing vacancies
in other services in the directorate.

Page 27



35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

CA7
Public Health
Public Health is forecasting an underspend of -£0.8m. In accordance
with accounting requirements, any underspend at the end of the year will
be placed in the grants and contributions reserve and will be used to
meet Public Health expenditure in future years..

Virements

No further 2016/17 virements are allowed to be requested for Cabinet
approval after the end of the financial year. New virements for Cabinet to
note are set out in Annex 2d.

Council approved the budget for 2017/18 on 21 February 2017. Annex
2b sets out virements that Cabinet are recommended to approve in
relation to 2017/18. They cover a number of housekeeping adjustments
within CEF, Adult Social Care and Corporate Services.

Fees and Charges (for 2017/18)

As set out in Annex 6a there are also two proposed amendments to:
library charge for the daily charge for play sets; and land search fee
charges which would be effective from May 2017.

Annex 6b also sets out a proposed new charge for the hire of library
premises and would be introduced from May 2017.

Bad Debts Write Offs and Impairments

There were 71 general write-offs to the end of February 2017 and these
totalled £17,053. In addition Adult Social Care has written off 120 Client
contribution debts totalling £146,354.

A debt of £24,000 relates to an overpayment of care fees paid to a Care
Home in Oxford. This company has since been struck off for failing to
comply with the Companies Act and the Legal team have advised that as
there are no assets the recovery of this overpayment is not possible. It is
recommended that the debt is written off.

An impairment of £165,000 is included in the Adult Social Care forecast
outturn. A large Home Care provider has recently gone into liquidation
and the advance payments under the Help to Live at Home contract are
unlikely to be recovered through the administration process. Updates will
be provided in future reports.

Business Strategy Savings

The forecasts shown in this report incorporate Business Strategy savings
that were agreed by Council in February 2016 and previous years. Of the
£53m savings included in the budget for 2016/17, 83% has now been
achieved or is on track to be achieved by the end of the year.

Within the Directorates, £8.9m of planned savings are flagged as Amber
or Red for not being fully delivered in this financial year. However, £1.8m
will be partly delivered in 2016/17 and £2.7m will be delivered in the next
financial year. Taking into account those savings that will be delivered in
part in 2016/17 and 2017/18, 92% of planned savings will be achieved.

Page 28



45.

46.

47.

CA7
This leaves only £4.4m (8%) of the £53m savings that are not achievable
and have all been addressed through the Service & Resource Planning
process. An update on the final position will be included in the
Provisional Outturn Report in June.

Treasury Management

The latest treasury management approved lending list (as at 30
September) is shown in Annex 4. There have been no changes to the list
since the last report.

The table below shows average in-house cash balances and average
rates of return for January and February 2017. Interest receivable for
2016/17 is currently forecast to be in line with the budgeted figure of
£3.2m. The reduction in interest rates is being offset by a higher than
forecast average cash balance. Interest payable is currently forecast to
be in line with the budgeted figure of £17.6m.

Month Average cash balance | Average rate of return

January £305.8m 0.69%

February £323.2m 0.88%

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

Part 2 — Balance Sheet

Annex 4 sets out earmarked reserves brought forward from 2015/16 and
the forecast position as at 31 March 2017. These reserves are held for
specified one — off projects, contractual commitments and to support the
Medium Term Financial Plan. Directorate reserves are expected to
reduce from £52.9m to £45.1m at 31 March 2017.

Other Reserves, which include Insurance, Capital and Cash flow
reserves, are forecast to total £45.8m at 31 March 2017. This includes
£1.3m in the Budget Reserve and £2.9m in the Efficiency Reserve.

Balances

As set out in Annex 5 general balances were £19.0m as at 31 March
2016. This compares to £17.5m as set out in the Medium Term Financial
Plan (MTFP) approved by Council in February 2016. The forecast
outturn position is £15.6m after allowing for the forecast directorate
overspend of £5.2m.

As set out in paragraph 3, this forecast position is less than the risk
assessed level. However, the proposed budget for 2017/18, to be agreed
at Council on 14 February 2017, includes a contribution to balances of
£2.7m to bring them back to the risk assessed level if required when the
final end of year position is known. The final position will be set out in the
Provisional Outturn Report to Cabinet in June 2017.

Part 3 — Capital Monitoring

The capital monitoring position set out in Annex 7a, shows the forecast
expenditure for 2016/17 is £123.4m (excluding schools local capital),
which is a decrease of £14.2m compared to the latest approved capital
programme. The table overleaf summarises the variations by directorate.

Page 29




CA7

Last Latest

Directorate Approved Forecast Variation
Programme * | Expenditure

£m £m £m
Children, Education & Families 50.7 50.1 -0.6
Social & Community Services 15.2 15.2 0.0
Environment & Economy — Transport 46.7 45.3 -1.4
Environment & Economy — Other 9.8 5.6 -4.2
Corporate Services 15.2 7.2 -8.0
Total Directorate Programmes 137.6 123.4 -14.2
Schools Local Capital 1.8 1.8 0.0
Earmarked Reserves 0.7 0.4 -0.3
Total Capital Programme 140.1 125.6 -14.5

* Approved by Council 14 February 2017

53.

54.

55.

56.

o7.

58.

59.

60.

Significant in-year variations for each directorate are listed in Annex 7b.
New schemes and total programme/project budget changes are listed in
Annex 7c.

£0.5m has been re-profiled from the basic need programme to reflect the
latest delivery timetable of the September 2017 basic need programme.

Within the Eastern Arc Phase 1 Access to Headington scheme, £1.7m
has been re-profiled to 2017/18 to reflect the delivery timetable of the
scheme.

The programme now includes the additional £1m on the Milton
Interchange scheme, funded through the LEP, approved at Cabinet in
February 2017.

There is a £3m reduction in Phase 1 of the Better Broadband project as
the cost of providing 90% coverage across Oxfordshire was less than
anticipated. The £3m of funding will be held within the earmarked
reserves of the capital programme pending approval of further business
cases requiring funding.

£8.5m of the externally delivered Didcot Station Car Park Extension
project, funded through the Local Growth Fund, has been re-profiled to
2017/18 following a delay with the start of construction.

Actual & Committed Expenditure

As at the end of February actual capital expenditure for the year to date
(excluding schools local spend) was £76.6m. This is 62% of the total
forecast expenditure. Actual and committed spend is 82% of the
forecast.

Five Year Capital Programme Update
The total forecast 5-year capital programme (2016/17 to 2020/21) is now

£526.5m, an increase of £0.8m compared to the last capital programme
for this period approved by Council on 14 February 2017. The table

Page 30



CA7
below summarises the variations by directorate and the main reasons for
these variations are explained in the following paragraphs.

Last Approved Latest
Total Updated Total
Directorate Programme Programme Variation
(2016/17 to (2016/17 to
2020/21)* 2020/21)
£m £m £m
Children, Education & Families 176.5 1771 +0.6
Social & Community Services 38.8 38.8 0.0
Environment & Economy - Transport 169.8 173.2 +3.4
Environment & Economy — Other 311 28.1 -3.0
Corporate Services 24.0 24.8 +0.8
Total Directorate Programmes 440.2 442.0 +1.8
Schools Local Capital 5.6 5.6 0.0
Earmarked Reserves 79.9 78.9 -1.0
Total Capital Programme 525.7 526.5 +0.8

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

* Approved by Council 14 February 2017

There is additional s106 funding of £0.6m towards individual projects
within the Basic Need and Growth Portfolio programmes.

Following Cabinet approval in February 2017, the A40 Oxford Science
Transit Phase 2 scheme now includes the additional £3.2m project
development budget.

There is an additional £0.8m on Local Enterprise Partnership schemes
following the completion of funding agreements including £0.6m on the
Northway and Marston Flood Alleviation project.

In March, additional funding of £2.454m between 2018/19 and 2020/21
was announced as part of the Special Provision fund towards children
with special educational needs and disabilities to enable school capacity
to be increased and making it easier for them to access good school
places. Authorities will be expected to consult on how their funding
allocation should be used, and publish a short plan before they receive
funding.

Cabinet are recommended to approve to contractually commit to the
construction of the Didcot Great Western Park Primary School (Chalkhill)
project, which will provide a 2 form-entry school for 60 children per year
group in the seven year groups from Foundation 1 to Year 6 and a 26 full-
time equivalent nursery for Foundation 2 children. The total budget is
£7.150m which is down from the £7.577m approved at stage 1. The
project is funded from s106 contributions.

In January 2017, the Government announced that the Council would
receive £3.3m through the National Productivity Investment Fund for local
highway and other local transport improvements which aims to reduce
congestion at key locations, upgrade or improve the maintenance of local

Page 31




CA7

highway assets to improve access to employment and housing, to
develop economic and job creation opportunities.

67. Cabinet is recommended to approve the following National Productivity
Investment Fund programme for inclusion in the capital programme (next
update to Cabinet in July 2017):

Scheme Name £m
A4158 Oxford Road and Newman Road junction 0.055
(DESIGN ONLY)

Microprocessor Optimised Vehicle Actuation (MOVA) 0.410
(including Clifton Hampden A415 and M40 J11 if

necessary)

A40 Sunderland Avenue (maintenance) 0.677
Urban Traffic Management & Control (UTMC) 0.023
Integration

Oxford Variable Message Signs (VMS) — Car Park 0.350
Guidance & Traffic Information Signs

Woodstock Road, Oxford (maintenance) 1.000
Smart Cycle Detection System (SCDS) 0.185
Access to Headington Complimentary (maintenance) 0.100
Measures

Upgrade Bus Stops (various countywide) 0.335
Warwick Road, Banbury Pedestrian Crossing 0.080
Programme Contingency 0.037
TOTAL 3.252
RECOMMENDATIONS

68. The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(9)

(h)

(i)

note the report;

approve the 2017/18 virements set out in Annex 2b;

approve the debt write off in paragraph 43;

note the impairment of the debt detailed in paragraph 44:

note the Treasury Management lending list at Annex 4;
approve the Fees and Charges set out in Annex 6;

approve the changes to the Capital Programme set out in
Annex 7b and 7c;

approve the contractual commitment for construction of the
Didcot Great Western Park Primary School (Chalkhill), with a
total budget of £7.150m as set out in paragraph 65; and
approve the £3.3m National Productivity Investment Fund
Programme set out in paragraph 67 for inclusion in the capital
programme.

LORNA BAXTER
Director of Finance

Background papers: Directorate Financial Monitoring Reports to the end

of January and February 2017
Background Papers: Nil

Contact Officers: Katy Jurczyszyn, Strategic Finance Manager

Tel: 07584 909518 April 2017
Page 32




L Xauuy

162°S G09°LLY 2T XA ovee v10'0LY 19N jej0] 8jei030a11q
Rl 0€9°66¢- 1.0.6¢- b6'G- 6CL 16¢E- |ejoL swoodu| sjelo}0alIg
o18‘s GeT'els S2h'608 282’8 evi‘1L08 lelo] ainjipuadx3y a)elo}oa.iq
0 6v1've 6V 1've 6YL've BWODU| SSOIL)
0 6vL‘ve- 6v've- 6vL've- ainyipuadx3 ss0i5
9lel01dalig Ulylim wwmhwcowm S§$S97
0 0 0 0 0
¥G¢ ozlee- 08v'ee- 0 08t'ce- SWOJU| SS0ID
5e- 9zlee 08v'ze 0 08v'ee ainjipuedxy ssoin)
yyesH aliand| Hd
9ve 60122 €981 Lye'o- 10L‘8e
809°¢c- L08'0%- 661°LE- €89°C1- 91G've- BWIOdU| SSOIE)
$3g8'e L16'29 £90'6S ' 029'es ainjipuadxy ssoiH
S92IAIRG 9jelodio)| 03D
€51°2- 60£°‘89 29v0L 108 lev‘e9
162G €0G'ep- 00881~ LLe'el L10"LO- d3WodU| $S0ID
0SY*L- I8 LEL 292611 0LL'Y- zer'eet @inypusdxy ssolo
Awouos3 @ Juswuouiaug 33
65- Lyv'eie 505212 88¢- £68'Cle
6. 0£G'G- 98Lp- rL'L 8.¥'9- BWodU| SSOID)
9eL L16'112 We'Lle oel'e- L8612 ainypusdxy ssoin
SBVINIBS 3_:_..:.:_.:00 B |eldog| SOS
yAYA)) (874 N1 25201 826 965901
261 218'/62- ¥00'862- bhe's- £6.'062- BWOJU| SSOIL)
G20°.L Ll AR 826'G0Y 6E1'8 685 L6€ ainypuadxy ssoiH
sal[lwe4 % uoneanp3 ‘ualppyd| 430
(er) (6) (8) ) () ©) @ (1)
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
+ pusdsiano
- puadsispun
wbn
oijel ] awoou|/puadg ajeloloaliqg Joy
soueleA 18bpng o3 pus Jes A ajeq 0} 196png
pus Jes p uoneueA pus 1Se23404 1ebpngisele | jusWoAON [eubuo
pajosloid lea A pajosloid uinNQ £1/9102 139ANd

Burioyuoly 126png

£102 [4dy SZ - 13INIFVD
Hoday Aonljoq AbBojenys ssauisng pue Buniojyuol) [eloueulq

Page 33



L Xouuy

8 1B8AJO 9, G -/ + JO SS9OX8 Ul 9oUBHEA BUIMOYS UIN1INO pojewnsy

189bpNq pua IBaA JO %G -/ + WIYNM 8q 0} yoBll UQ

196PpNQ pud 1BaA JO %¢ -/ + UWIYNM oq 01 0Bl uQ

196png

Jojeoipu| jo adA | paeoaloosg paouejeg
SL1HOIT JI4dVHL OL AN

0 /68°50¢ 168°S0€ 0 168'G0E juswadinbay xeL [1ouno)
0 €e8'le- €c8'Le- £e8'Le- SIoUNOY 10MISIg WOl seley ssaulsng
0 ¥68°LE- ¥6€°LE- 768 LE- dn-do] sejey sseuisng
0 Lee'6e- Lee'6e- Lee'ee- juein poddng enuensy
0 SLO'L- SLO'L- SLO'Z- sesn|ding xej 1ouno)
0 6¥1'0c- 6¥L'02- 6¥L'02- SHUBID) JUBWIUIBA0Y) paoudbuLun
LG2'S- ¥00'02 GG2'Ge ove'e- G6G'/2 jobpng sa.nseay d16ojels
0 6€8'G- 6€8'G- e 818'G- seoueleg Uo 1saialy|
0 S60°ce §60°ce §60'ce Buroueul [ende)
0S.- 0cL'L 0.8'1 §G/'2- G29't Aousbunuon
(017 0 08~ 00S 0Se't- abreyoey Buineg yesH oland
LGe'G- 2ee's- L bL- 0 sooueeq (-)woly/(+) 01 uouNquUIUO)
0 050°¢e- 050'¢c- L 1S0'e- SOAI9SaI(-) Woly/(+) 0] SUOHNGLIUOD
(1) (6) (8) (1) )] (€) (@ ()
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
+ puads.iano
- pusadsiapun
wbn
oijel | awloouy/puadg a)elooalIq JoH

aoUBLEA 1ebpng o1 pus Jes A aleq 0} 1obpng

pus Jea A uoljelleA pue 1se29104 196png 1seje] |  JUSWBAO [eublO

pajosloid lea A pajosfoid uININQ L1/9102 139and

Bulioliuopy 196png

£102Z vdy SZ - 1INIAYD
Jodoay Asanljog Abajeng ssauisng pue Buliojyuol [eidueul

Page 34



Bl Xauuy

SO 98/'G 18€°S 6.¢- 099‘S
0 0 0 0 0 SWOoU| SS0IK)
SO 98/°'G L8E’G 62" 099°‘s aJnyipuadxy ssoin)
s1509
[euaQ (430) salliwes g uoneINp3 ‘UAIPIYO | S430
0¢- (444 v 0 1144
0 LCO'Ccve- L2O'cve- 9.9~ Lge'ove- BUWIOJU| SS0ID)
0z- osv'cre oLv'eve 9/9°t v6.L'0v2 alnjipuadx] ssoin
sjooyds| 430
SSLL £19'62 85Y°'8¢ L09°L 158'92
9 cOoL"L- 991"~ el 6.1}~ 8WodU| SSOID)
L60°L GLL'0¢€ ¥29'6¢C 65| 0£0'82 alnypuadxy ssoin)
S@2IAI9S 9PIMAIUNOY a1e) [BID0S S,Uap|iyd| €439
GE6°C 819'GH £89°LY bLL vS8‘ L
0 LB0O'L- L60°L- 6€2' - 868'G- 2WOoU| SS0IK)
GE6'e L AVANA®] 6LL'8Y 190°L rAVAIA aInjipuadx3 Sso.lL)
2leQ |el00s s,ualpliyd (2430
(474" (5 4 XAA 10202 822- 62602
62l GlLE6Y- vy 6v- 0LE'p- e 1 G- aWOooU| SS0.E)
K 8G/L'LL GvL'0L 280y £90'99 ainypuadx3 ssolib)
uopuaaidlu| Auex x uonesnpl | 1439
(8) () (9) (9) () (€) (@) (1)
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
+ puadsiano
- puadsispun
Wb
oyjel| swoou|/puadg 9)e1010811(3 1oy
aoueleA pus Jes A alewnsy ayeq 0} 196png
pus IesA uoleue pus 1Se03104 180187 JUSWBAON [eulbuQ
pajosloig lea A peyosloid uiniInQ £1/9102 139dNnd
Buuoyuoypy 196png

£102 Mdy SZ - 1INIGVO
yodey Aianljeg AbBejeng ssauisng pue Huuoluop) [eroueuly

Page 35



| pu® 1B8A 10 9, G -/ + JO S§S90X8 Ul 80UBIEA BUIMOUS UIN1INO polewsy

19BPNQ pus JeaA JO %G -/ + UIYIM 8q 01 5oB1} UQ

18bpng pus JeaA JO %z -/+ UIYIIM aq 01 joel uQ

10b6png

Jojesipuj jo adA ] piesasodsg pasuejeg
SL1HOIT J1d4VdLl OL A3

el Xauuy

LT, [LvLpLL 25" L01 826 965°901 19N [E10] 9jeloldallq
c6l clLg’L62- ¥00'86¢- LLe'L- €6.°06¢- [BjO L awodu| 8jelo}oaliq
§20°L £55°CLY 8250V 6€L'g 68€°26¢ lejo| ainjipuadx3y ajesoloaliq
0 0 0 0
0 6CL'L 6CL'L 0 6L L aWodU| SSOIK)
0 6CL'L- 6cL'L- 0 62L L- 8Jn1puadxy ssoin
8]e1010241Q Uyl sebieyoey ssa
0 659801 65801 0 6S8°01
0 0 0 0 0 BWOodU| SSOIL)
0 6S8'0L 6G8°0L 0 65801 ainylpuadxy ssoln)
sobieyoay adiniag poddng ajqenobsN uoN
(8) () (9) ) ¥) (€ (@) ()
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
+ puadsiano
- puadsispun
Wb
oljel] awoou|/puadg 21el0)oalig joH
9oUBLBA pus Jea A alewns3 aleq 0} 196png
pus Jes A uonelBA pud 15809104 1s9je JUSWSAON [euibuQ
paosloid [ [1eaA payosloid uiniNQO L1/9102 139aNg
Bulioyuoyy 106png

£102 judy §Z - 1INIGVO
podoay Atanpg Abajenyg ssauisng pue Buliojjuoly jeloueul

Page 36



(1) g1 xeuuy

8 IB8A JO 9,G -/ + JO SS90Xd Ul 90UBHEA BUIMOYS UINIINO Palewiisy

19DpNq pud JedA JO %G -/ + UM 84 01 soell U0

19DpNq pud JEdA JO %¢ -/ + UIULIM 8q 01 508l uQ 196png
6G- LyheLe g0s¢cle 88¢- £68'Cle 19N [ej0] 8jeaojdalig
v6.- 0es's- 9eL'p- erL’L 8.1'9- [e}0], awodu| 9jeloldallg
9¢L L16°L1T ie'Lle 0cLe- L.e612 lejol ainjipuadxy ajeso}dadiqg
0 0 0 0 0
0 6v.'9 67,9 67.'9 BWOooU| SS0IE)
0 6vL'9- 61.'9- 6v.L'O- ainyipuadxy ss0ID)
9}e1039341Q UIYHA sobieyoay sson
0 182clt 18gcl 0 18221
0 0 0 0 0 BWO0oU| $S0.IE)
0 182zl 18221 0 182'2L ainypuadx3 ssolo
sobieyoay aoiniag poddng ojqelyobaN uoN
182°L- 922'ee £9v'ee I- vov'ee
08 9612- 9/2'e- b Lle'e BWOodU| Ss0IH
LIE L zcev've 6€.'Se c- Lrl'G2 ainyipuadx3 ssoin
Kpjes Ajlunwiwod | €808
v0C LLL'E £16°C 290°L- SE0'p
Gle- L09‘L- 92e'}- eS| 8/6'C- BWOdU| SSOIY)
6.5 8LL'Y 661t 18- €10’ ainypuadx3 sso1n)
Bujuoissiwwo) julor|2s0s
v.16 29.'vLL 88.'CL1 G/9 SLL'ELL
661- 281°'8- €86'L- Li- 2cL6'L- 3WO00U| SS0ID)
YLV L Ghe'esl LLL 8L 989 G80°I8I ainjipuadx3 ssoID
ale) [e1d0g 1npy | LSOS
(8) () (9) (9) ) (€ (@ (1)
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
+ puadsisno
- puads.tapun
wbN
oljelj awoou|/puadg EilI[ab)g] JEIT|
8oUBLEBA pus Jes A sjewlsy o1 0O} 1ebpng
pus JeaA UONBLIBA pUS 15809104 191 SJUBWIBIIA reuibuo
pajosloid 1B9 A pejosfoid uinunQ £1/9102 139ang

Bulioyuopy 196png

£10Z 1Mdy SZ - 1ANIGVI
Hoday Aanjeq ABajeng ssauisng pue Buliojiuoly jeloueuly

Page 37



S6v'c+ G§29'9+ 0ZL6+ sjabpng pajood [elol |L¥9'862 S0€°062
0150+ €09°G+ €LLO+ dnoJ Bujuoissiwwoy |ed1ul[) BAIYSPIOIXQ [B101|LE2° 201 967901
00070+ 000°0+ 00070+ pund aled laneg |e101|520°9¢ 168°€E
G86° L+ 220° L+ 100°s+ [1ouno) AJuno) aJIYspIoXQ |BI0L (962°65 1 Por6vi
vOlL' L+ 2v0°0- 290" L+ |ood seni|iqesiq bujulea (€101 [/68°/8 £€6°€8
AN 200+ 3GL O+ dnoJs) buluoISSIWLWOY [BO1Ul|D SIYSPIOXO[8LEE L LIE'EL
8.6°0+ ¥20°0- ¥06°0+ [1ouno) AJunoy 8JIYSPIOIXO(6.LG 7L 919°0L
100d sallljigesiq buluiea]
eV Lt 11870+ ghee+ jood salliiqes!q [edIsAyd [e101]098°61 0,261
6€e°0t L1G0+ /8¢ L+ dnois buluoissiwwio) jediul] adlyspojxQ[998°L SveE'L €p
£60° L+ v62 0+ /8" 1+ [1ouno) Alunoy allyspIoXO|y66 L 1 Gee'LL mV&
3
100d saniljigesiqg |edlsAyd %-
L¥0°0- 968°'G+ G18'G+ jood Juawdinb3 %@ s,a|doad 19p|O je10L|Z12'S61 2oL’/81
Sv0'0+ $G0°G+ 660G+ dnods) BUILOISSIWLWOD [eD1UND BIYSPIOXO[ES0 98 282'98
000 ¢+ 000°0+ 0000+ pung ale) iened|9€6°GE L68°EE
980°0- 2080+ 9LL 0+ ounoD AJUN0Y BJIYSPIOIXO (€22 €L £26°99
[004 UsWidIinbg 3 s,9|doad Jepi0
w3 w3 w3 w3 w3
1iodau
aoueliep snolnaad 1ad se pu3 Jes)
ul abueyn aouelIeA 1SB02104 | douUBlIBA 1SBI9.104 196png 1s9e1B7 12bpng jeuibrLip

(2) g1 xauuy

s19bpng psjood

£10z Mdy §Z - 13INIGVO
$991A198 Alunwiwio?) 1 [e190g :uoday Aoaljeg Absjellg ssauisng pue Bulojuop Jeloueuly 18¢0130



9 IBSA O 9,G -/ + JO SS8OX8 Ul 9dUBLIEA BUIMOYS UJN1INO palelinsy
19DpNq pus 1edA JO 9,G -/ + UIYHNM oq 01 joeq uQ
19bpPNQ pud JE8A 0 9% ¢ -/ + UIYHM a8q 01 >oell uQ 186png

lojeaipu| jo adA] piesaiosg pasuejeg
S1HOIT Jld4Vdl OL A

Page 39

€Gl'¢- 60£°89 29v'0L 140'8 Lev'e9 JeN [elo] 8jel0)oadiqg
162'S £05°'eh- 008'8t- Lie'el L10°L9- |ejoL awoduj ajeloldalig
0sp'L- Ci8'LLL 29T'6L1 0LL Y- zev'ect lejo ainypuadxy sjeloroallq
0 LBlEl LBlL'El 0 L6L'EL BWOoU| SSO4L)
0 LBLElL- LBL'EL- 0 LBL'CL- aimipuadxy ssoun
ajel010a4ig Uy sabieyoay ssa7
0 28€'11- LS€°LL- /818 byS'61-
0 99891~ 99891~ 9eLel 200'6¢- BWIODU| sS0ID)
0 605‘S 60G‘S 616°¢c- 8GY'6 ainypuedxy ssoin)
sabJeyoay
a89JA19s Moddng ajqenoban uoN
vyl - 6v6'vL £60°LL 2144 Lv9°9L
626'S Zre've- LLZ'OV- Gl.- 96%'6¢- QUIOdU| SSOIDH
€L0'8- 162'601 voeLLL Lee't EVLOLL ainjipuadx3 ssolo)
[esowwo)| z3a
6- JAVN 92L'v 265- glLe's
ce9- z6t'G- 098'v- 0S8 0LL's- 9WOJdU| ssoi
€29 6020l 086'6 vy - 820 | ainypuedxy ssolo
ainjonJisedju] pue Abajens| 133
(8) () (9) (9) (2] (€) (@) (1)
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
+ puadsiano
- puadsispun
o
ojel] awoou|/pusdg ajelo}oallg 18y
aoueLEBA pus JesA olewnsg aleq o) 190png
pus Jeaj uollelB A pud 1SB09104 1s91e] 1UBWBAON [euibuQ
pajosloid reo A pajosfoig uwinnno £1/910¢ 13DdnNgd

Burioyuoy 196png

£102Z 1Mdy SZ - 13NIGVD
podey Aianljeq AbBajesyg ssauisng pue Builoliuop)] |eroueulq

o1 Xouuy



Pl Xauuy

LL- 8 6L 0 6L
0 0] 0 0 0 aWodu| SS0J5)
LL- 8 6/ 0 6. ainjipuadx3g ssoin)
alo) dnessows( % a1es0diod (9030
LL2- 816 68L°L S0L 1£°14
€S- 00¢g- /ve- vS1 LOb- BWOdU| SS0IE)
8G1- 8LT7°1L oev‘l 1SS 588 ainypuadx3 ssoi5)
Adllod|s030
88- Slv'e €952 61~ 2L
SY6'L- €ve's- 8629~ 19 6G€'0- dulodU| ssolY
188°L 8LL'0L 1988 Okt /68 ainjpusdxg ssoi5
alnyn) B me1|y030
091- 602V 69¢'y £9¢ 900‘t
28¢e- c9€'C- 080°2- 8€G 819°¢- BWOoU| SS045)
acl LLG'9 6¥v'9 G- 7299 ainjipusdx3y ssoiD)
PNy |eulaiu] ® 9dueuld ajeiodion (€03
6l 290 8v0'c ele- 0ze'e
£0g- Yiv'L- /91°1- LIy 8G' L~ WOoU| SS0JY)
9ze LvG'v SL2'Yy 689~ $06'Y alnypuadxy ssoln)
$924nosay uewnH|(zo3o
0.l- SLL G8.L 9.¢ 601
8- a- 0 0 0 BWOdU| SS01H
£9- [AAA g8/ 9/¢ 601 alnjpuadx3 $S0JY)
Hoddng ssauisng B 9AlIN23X3J JOIYD | 1LOID
(8) ) {9) () (v) (€) (@) (1)
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
+ puadsiano
- puadsiapun
wbn
oljel] swoosu|/puadg ojeloloallqg oy
aouBLeA pus Jes olewilsg 91eq o} 19bpng
pus Jes A uoljelBA pud 1SB29.104 1s9)eT] JUSWBAON reuibuo
pajosloid 1eo A pojosioid uinung £1/9102 1L3Ddngd

Bunoyiuopy 196png

£10Z IWdy G2 - 13NIGVO
yoday Atanijeq Abajelig ssauisng pue Buliouuoly [e1sueulq

Page 40



Pl Xauuy

8 JesA Jo %G -/+ }JO SS8I2X3 Ul 3JUBLIBA DUIMOYS UIN11NO palewllsy

19BpNQ pus 189A JO %G -/ + UIGIM aq 0} 3oe. uQ

18DPNQ pud JBSA JO 9%¢ -/ + UIUIIM 8q 0} >oel uQ

18bpng

103e21puj Jo adA] piedsssoag pasuejeg
S1HOIT Jid4Vvdl OL A3

ave 60122 £98°'Le 1ve'9- 0182 19N [B]O [ 38jeloloalig
809°¢- L08'0t- 661°,8- €89'CL- 9lS've- |BloL awodu| 3jeloloalig
$58°C L1629 £90°65 evr'o 029‘es |ejoj ainyipuadx3y djesopa.iq
0 YLY'T Y.¥'2 v.L¥'e BWOOU| SS0IE)
0 Y.Lv'e- viv'e- viv'e- ainpuadx3 ssolD
ajelo3oaliqg Uyl sebieyosey sso
0 €8L°LL- €8L°L1- 981‘g- 16G'e-
0 Les'le- les'le- YOL'GL- 1G€'9- dulodu| ssoln
0 VAN LEL'6 1/6'9 09.'c ainjipuedxy ssoiH
sobJieyosy
aoinies poddng sjgqenoban uoN
/128 vv'ee 5192 28 16202
101~ €LE'6- 09¢'8- LIE L 1/9'6- BWOdU| SSOIH
L1781 gl8°LE /662 |81~ 29%'0¢ ainjpuadxy sS0IK)
uoneunojsuel] (2039
(8) () (9) (S) ) (€ (@ (1)
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
+ puadsiano
- puadsiapun
Wb
oljel] awoou|/pusdg 9jeIi0)o3liq JoH
QouBlleA pus IeoA slBwIisy 2leq o1 196png
puS JBaA UOBLIBA puUd 15809104 189187 JUSWIBAOWN [euibuo
pajoslold ies A pajosioid uiniing Z1/910¢ 139dN4g

Buriojiuopy 106png

L10Z udy GZ - 1ANIAVD
yoday Aanljeg ABaleilg ssauisng pue BuLIONUOA] [elaueuly

Page 41



al xsuuy

3 JBSA JO %G / + JO 5590X@ Ul 90UEHEA DUIMOUS UINIIND pojew sy

190pNq pua JE8A JO %G -/ + UIGIM 9q 03 5081 U0

19DPNq pue JBoA JO %¢ -/ + UM 8q 0F JOBI UQ

S1H9SIT J1d4vH1l OL A3

0 0 0 0 0 19N [e}0] 3sjeto033aliq
vee 9elee- osv'ee- 0 08t'ce- felol swosu| 8jeioydalq
vSe- 9ZLce 08v°‘ce 0 08v'2e |ejo 1 @inyipuadx3y e8jes030a11q
0 0 0 0 2WOoU| $S0I5)
0 0 0 0 ainypusdxy ssoiH
9]R40193.1Q UIYUM Sabieydsey ssa
0 ¢LS C¢.S 0 ¢LS
0 ) 0 0 aWOooU} SSOIE)
I TLS 2.s 2LS anypuadx3 sso1
sabieyoay aoinleg oddng ajqeijoboN uoN
(4%} 4] 81959y Yl|eaH 21|and 0} J9jsued]
0 gzlLee- 9zl'ee- 0 9cL'ee-
0 921 '2e- 9el'ee- 0 9glee- 200U $5015)
0 0 0 0 0 ainypuadx3y $s0IL)
awoau| eay| yHd
Ob- 6% 66 0 66
0 0 0 0 0 2WI0dU| SS0ID)
O~ 65 66 0 66 ainjlpuadx3y $SOID)
sebieyoay yyesH alland| €Hd
G- 619'CL YEE'EL 0 vEE'EL
vSe 0 e 0 vae- QWOoU| $S0JE)
890}~ 619t 889'C 0 889°CH ainypuadx3 ssolo
pauyep AjjeocoT - seplqisuodsay Buiuoissiwwo) v1| ZHd
| _ s 70'8lL 121'8L 0 12L'8l
| o 0 0 0 0 5WO0U| SS0ID
| | |- v¥0'8L LZL'8lL o] lgL'gl ainypusdx3y $s015
pauyeq Ajjeuonep - sanljiqisuodsay Bujuoissiwwo) y1| LHd
(o1 2] © () ) () @ )
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
+ puadsiano
- puadsiapun
Wb
oyel] swoou|pueds 81e10109.1g jod
S0UBLIBA pus JeaA arewsy ajeq 0} 196png
pud 1ed A UOBUEA pud 15828104 1s91e JUBWIBAO[ feuiblo
pajoslold 1es A pajosiold uinynQ L1/910¢ 139dNg

Buuonuoyy 1ebpng

£102 Mdy SZ - 13NIgvd
Joday Aeapg Abajeng ssauisng pue Burioyiuopy jeidueuly

Page 42



Page 43

|e10] pueln
0003 0003
oseaI0ap + osE8108p - Buneaw
/ @sealou| - / 8sealoul + Aesodwe ) BuUIge)
awoou| ainypuadx] / Jusuewlad Baly 90IA9S auj| %ooq j18bpng uoneueyN HIAIN 81ei010211( JO YIUop JO YIUOW 9)eI030911(
Bleq

MO39 @31Ivli3d SV SINFWIHIA FHL IAOHddY OL AIANIWINOD3H SI LINIGVD

£10Z Ivdy SZ - 1INIgVD
yoday Aanlaq AbBajesyg ssauisng pue Buuiojuoly |eisueul

BZ Xauuy



L€LL L L€'} |e10] puelin
0'8LL 00 JusuewWIdg 90IAIBG J8|[9ARI | ¥ ASTAL) €-€80S
00 08LL- jusuewlad 90IAIBS Jo||oARI | R ASAAD €-€50S sjebpngq Jojjonei) pue AsdAB 188 judy mom.n_.
8'CEY 00 jusuewWIad B0IMIBG JB|[aARI ] ASAAD) €-€S0S 10BIU0D <t
00 8'CCh- Jusuewiad 90IAIDS J9||9ARI ] R ASOAD) €-€50S] Jo pua Bumo|jo} sjebpnq jo [eroway udy SOS
00 L'€2- jusuewlad salliqes|q buluieeT] 21-180S SU0I}021100
00 1'€2 JusueWIdd 1Hjigesi [eo1sAud gL1-1S0S| uonejul uonnguiuod 3ebpng pejood Judy SOS ®)]
00 0052 juduewIad uojjewlojsuel | 1-2030
00 0'05¢- jusuewad Spiemals ealy £5-¢33 pung saUNWIWOY j1idy EEN N
2620}~ 00 JusueuISd 21N} ND % ME 1-#030
00 2'620'} jusueWIa ANy Ny ¥ Me7 L-+030D 196png saoinies [ebe 198 |udy [3e)
00 2’62 jusuewlsd uoneuojsuel | 1-203D
00 262 JuduBWIBd Ad1|0d 1-603D 1s0d Josiape o16ejells JO J8jsuel | Judy [Ye)
8'60€']- 00 jusuewIed uonudAIBIU| Ajje3 /-2430D
00 8°60E' | JusuBULSd UOjjusAIBIU| Al /-2430 Api 196pnq saljiwe4 ps|gno. L judy 430
9'0- 00 jusuewWIdd bulules | pue JuawAojdw3 ‘uoneonpy 9-243D
00 9'9 jusuBWIRd Dujue | pue JuswAojdW3 "uoleonps 9-2430 Api Jebpng |udy 430
19l 00 jusuBWIdd 9JIISG DUIPUBHQO LINOA G-€430
00 191~ JusuBULSd 9OIAISG DUIPUBHO UINOA G-€430 Buipun jueiB ul uononpay Judy 430
00 9'69E'G6 |- jusueLIdd siebpng parebaled 1-¥430
00 9'692°561 [ENEVEN sjebpng pajebaleq 1-¥430 suonedo|e JBpng j00Yos |udy 430
0003 0003
2Se2i09p + asealoap -
/ @sealoul - J asealoul + Kresodwa | Bunesw
awoou| aunypusdx3 / lusuewad BOlY 80IAMDG aul| »ooq jobpng uoljeueN| jouIgeD JO YUoW ajelo}o8liqg
Bleqg

gg Xxauuy

:M01739 SLNIWIHIA 81/2102 IHL JA0HddVY OL AIANIWWOI3Y SI LIANIGYD

£10Z IMdy GZ - 1INIGVD
uoday Asanljag AbBajesyg ssauisng pue Bulioliuojp [eisueuiy



L'GEL L'GEL- |BJOL puUBID)
212Gt Lies'L- Aejodwa | saniqesiqg bujuies ¥9dS
L'L6V'L- L 19%°'L Aesodwa | 8|d0odd 48pIO 19dS
1'62¢ 00 Aelodwa] DuUOISSIWWOY Juior|  $-¢SDS 01 L-2S0S
00 6068 Alelodwa | Ajoede] |BJUSIN @ UOIO8I0.d INPY r-1SOS
00 V28l Aeiodwa] JuswaAoIdu| 818D [e190S HNPY rM-1S0S
00 16 Aejodwia | Jsiy je s}npy ay-180S
00 S'ee- Aejodwis | SAalv/AIH gv-1508
00 00 Arejodwa | SI9YBDS WNJASY Vi-1S08
00 ZYL- Aelodwa | $8JIAI8S |00d-UON VE-1SOS
00 0'68Z- Aelodws | buluoissiwwoy d 32-1S0S
00 L'12S'}- Aelodwe | SuolNQUIUCY J8bpng Pa8jood 0¢-1S0S
00 S 0p- Aeiodwa | UONESI[eU0SIod v2-1S0S
00 8725 Aeiodws BWOoU| 0d1-1S0S
00 1'6/8 Areiodwa SUONNQUIUCD 18DpNg Pajo0d VI-1SDS JUSWIBIIA POIDBLIOD PASIABI 1/ 1-91.02 S8IH|e00T 9|qisuodsay
00 6°G0L Aeioduie | Alioedeg [BJusiy @ UOHO8]0Id INPY Ir-1SOS
0'0 6°G0)- Aeloduwie | juswianoidull 8Je |eid0g Jinpy M-1S0S
00 g'Lie- Aejodwa L AloRdEe] |BJUBI B UOND8]0Id HNPY T7-180S L
00 8'Lic Arejodws | uswanoidull 8JeQ |ei00g JInpy M'-1S0S ¥
A 26vE'L- Arelodwis | sanliqesiq buluiesT »9dS
Z2'6vE'L- 26vE L Arelodwis | 9|doad 19pI0 19dS
00 A Aelodws | suoinquUjuod ebpng pajood 02-1S0S
00 Lieet Aelodwis SuolnquiuoY jebpng pejood Vi-1S0S
G662 G'652 AeJodwis L 8|doed J8p|0 19dS n_l
00 00 Aeijodwis | salijiges|q bujuiesT #9dS
00 068/~ Aeiodwia] Ajoeded [BJUs|N ® UON98}0Id HNPY -1S0S
00 0682 Aelodwa ] Buiuoissiwwo) a7 32-180S
'96 00 Aelodwa | 9|doad 19pI0 19dS
00 '96- Aelodws | sSuolNgUIU0YD 18bpng psejood VI-180S
622 62 Aeiodwa ] a|doad 18pI0 19dS |esioABl JUBWIBIIA [eulBlIO 1/ |-91.02 SenIjed0] ajqisuodsay
861 861 Aeiodwa | 8jdoad 18pI0 19dS sajepan Jebpng HOD0 81dosd 48pi0 ged idy SOS
00 9'€96- Aeiodwia | SqQnH uoluaAelu| Aleq 1/-2430
00 08I Aeioduwis] Buiuiei] g juewAo|dws "uoieonpy 9-2430
00 9°68¢ Aeiodwa 90IA19S SUONNJOS Alllueq 62430 201AI8S S,u.p|IyD perelbajul jo dn 1es
8°G/- 8'G/ Aelodula] Bujuies R sjooyos [ EER) SUOIIED0||Y 1S91€] 10} §)ebpng snid Wnjwald {I0nd eSeaidu;
00 0'Ge- Aeiodwa] SIE9A UOHBpUnoy 2v-1430
00 0'se Aejodws | Buiuiea’ @ sjooyds Ly-1430 £1/9+0g dn Apn 1ebpng
€0 £0- Alejodwa | s}abpng pajebs|ag L-¥430
PyL- a4t Aeiodws | (SSNIS) sediueg poddng NIS 2¢-1430
68¢- 6°8E Aejodwa] (N3S) speaN |euoheonp] [ef0ads 12-1430 sjuBWSN{P. 9SB( 80IN0SaY ge idy 430
0003 0003
oSB8Id8p + 9sB2108p - Bupesw
/ @sea.oul - ] @seasou) + Areiodwa] HAIN e1eloloalig leuiged|  (s1es03081ig $S0ID
awoou} ainyipuadxy / lusueulad Baly 99I1AI9S aujl] yooq 19bpng uofjeseN O Yuon JO YIUOW = Q) eesopaug

pg Xsuuy

:M0OT34 @311v13A SV SINIW3YHIA IHL 3LON OL A3AN3IWWOD3H SI L3INIgvO

£102 IMdy §Z - 13INIdVD

uoday Asnljaq AbBajeng sseuisng pue Builojiuoly] [ersueuly



Sy 9 000°000'G2 Mueg sessIsnQ panun)|
sAep y9¢ 000'000'S2 3UBg UOJUILL0g-0Ju0IO |
SAep 9¢ o 000°000°52 000°000'Se USXUBGS]|OPUBH BYSUaAS
SABp $9€ 000°000°Se Bpeue) JO yueg [eAoy
SABp 92 000°000°Ge dnolg) sueqoqey

Sylw g 000°000'S2 di05) Bunjueg assuiyd-essisng

SWw 9 000'000°G L Ra100g Bulp|ing spmuocien
SAep 00} 0000000} BpBUED |0 yueg [BUONEN

Syl g 000'000'G2 Jueg el[eiSNyY [BUOHBN

Syiw 9 000'000'02 (eqejaH) usbuuny | -UsSSaH yuegsepue]

SYlw 6 q 000'000'G2 00000062 ojd yjueg gs1 spAon
shep 9¢ 000°000'Se o/d yjueg DgSH

sieoh ¢ 000'000°0€ (SenuoyIne [enpl JOYINY (8007 YSMOOS PUe Usjap "Us!iBul

SUIW 9 Oll0JLOd %00 | e JIsoda(] JUNoody Juewabeuey 1geq

sy 9 000°000'62 (a10debuIg j0 sjueg Juswdojersq) yueg Sgd
SRep 001 000°000°G >ueg o4sueq
SAep 00 000°000°G} 9SSINS WpaId

Syiw 9 000°000°G} Rj100g BuIpjing AjusAo)

Syl 9 000'000'62 el|el}sny JO Yueq Y}eemuowwio)

Sy g P 000'000°0} 000'000'0} P17 siayjoig 8s0|9
SAep £ 000'000'62 80J8WWOY JO Yueg [eusdw| uelpeue)
sAep Q01 i 000'000'G L 0|d Yueg sAejoieg

Sy g q 000'000'G2 000'000'G L PUBJOOG JO Yueg
shep y9g 000'000'G2 BHOOG BAON JO Yueg
shep y9g 000'000'62 [BSIJUOI JO Yueg

Sy 9 e 000°000°S | 000°000°G 1 9jd M 18puejuEs

SHS00a(Q Jo)Jefy Aduo

S g e 000°000'G 5]\ 010U AEp G6 JopUBIUES
shep 001 } 000°000°G L /v @d1j0u Aep Gg sAejpieg
sRkep 00} ] 000°000'G | 9/y Weuno skejaieg

syl 9 000'000'62 Juawabeue)y JuBWISeA| [eidusy) pue [ebo)

N/O 000°000'G puN ANpINbr BUIRSIS Aeuels uebioptP

Squ g 000°000'5e (1B ApauLioy) (jounog Aunog) - pung AIpinbiT Buipels aji piepuels

syiw 9 000'000'2+ (erey aWiid) poyeiopo

sy 9 000'000'G2 pun4 builia}g pebeuepy aydsineq

Sy 9 000'000'G2 puUNJ SaAI2s8Y PINDI BUIPBIS SYOES UBWIPIOD
SRep ¥9¢ 5 000°000°S2 000°000°'Ge /¥ I[BD - UBXUBQS|OPUBH BYSUBAS

Syjw 6 q 000'000'S2 000'000'Ge O/¥ usodaq 8|qe|e) - 9d yueg spAop

syl g P 000'000°01 000'000°0L O/y 82110U ABp G6 - PI Si8yloig 8S0|0

Syl 9 e 000'000'G L 000'000°'G} O/V Ulel - 9|d HN Jepuejuesg

SpUN 193JE ASUO[ / SIUNOJJY [[8)
SAep 9 000°000'52 (PUNg UOISUBJ) 9/V [[BD - USHUECS[SPUEH EYSUSAS
syl g 000°000'52 {SIUB| Aoy (pung Uoisuad) - pund AlipinbiT Bujiels aji piepuels

SQIW 6 000°000'Se (N3400a-d04X0) o/v 1sodaq 8lqelieD - 0jd YuegspAor]

Sy 9 000°000'GL 5V 3d - 91d YN I8puelEs

Spun4 }o3Je\l ASUCH / SJUNOJDY [[eD ANMNd NOISN3Id
3
1w pouad Nwi prepuels

awepN Auediaiuno)

€ xauuy

9102 Jequisldag o e se
1s17 Bujpua uswebeuey Ainseal] s,1ounod AJuno) a4IyspiojxQ

£102 1Mdy G2 - 1INIGVD
Hoday Alaaleg ABajells ssauisng pue Bulio}iuoly |eloueuld




ayvc =1

¥ Xauuy

- diysiauped asudisjuz 2007 8y} Hoddns o) 19uiqe) Aq paredo)ie usaq sey Jey; Buipun) (DAY SUIBIUGD BAIS3) SIyL 861 661 661 diysisuped asudiaiug (207 poddns o) Buipund j9gy]
"sIeah aImny U S|IOUNOD JOUISID BY) Yim siuswaaiBe ssn-ulol ayy Joddns o} pesn aq IIa 0/z- 0.2 (4930 WOl paAowW) asq uior
102l0.d 81SBAMA PUB S[RJBUIN BU} PUN} OL SL SL 8t~ €21 10801 31SBM PUE S[RIBUIN
S1/p1LO Ul SQNID GOr Uo Jusds 8q 0] saniQ qor
Ab2jeliS UONBSHBUONE 19SSE 3U) JO LUONBIUSWAIdW! SU) IO} PUN} JUSWISIAU| 2622 262'2 0012 261 uonesijeuoney 19ssy
S$ISO0 UB3s.0juN 10§ ASUSBURUOD & SNId SIO0UDS Ul SIUSWSACIAWI BULIBIED pun) 0} pasn aq 0 122 oLt 9Ly {LMd Apsuuo)) pund jusugsaau] Buusien
j08l0ld pu3 1S9 BU) 0} bue|@s Buipun) 20ud)-Bup 0 S| BAI9SBI SIY] 96 95 95 diysisuped pu3 1sem
sluawiaaibie 90| uoHI9S BULIOIUOW JO S1S00 ) J33W O GEG SES SES (snuaney) Buipuny tsdojersq
S)diooal (BldeD Jsurebe pableyo aq 0] 8|qiblla % du) JO SSBOXa Ul S}SOD [RSods|p 198w 0 192 192 192 $150) |esodsiq Auadosd
"19BAUOD SjSeM WOI) Alsbu3 ay) Jo Led Se SjuawAed WSIUBYOSW JI0H3P 10BUOD AUB 03 9Np SONYIGE! [BIDUBUY PUny O 08g 08¢ 08¢e wawebeueyy a1sem
"SJBBA BININJ Ul 8AISSSJ BY) O] PIedal 3 (M S|y “dIysisupey
0dl 8y} 0} Bunejal SJS00 JUBWISBAUI BY) PUN) LEd 0] Pasn Buiag SAISSI BU) 03 BNP SBM 1BBA SIL} JUBWSAOW BU} JO YING BUL "Sals
PUE| J8UI0 JO 2JNSO[0 B} 0) AP sapligel| BuloB-uo Jayjo Aue pue ayis Juswabeuew ajsem 1id XIJ 18 Yiom (j82) BussuiBue pun) o) 00L SlLe- 1%4 Juswdoeasa OYM B som Buusauibug )id xiq
(dMO) diysisuned
BISBM 2UYSPIOIXO a1 Ag painoas Jueib piemal eouewuopad 8 JO JUBWSIR PASINUN B} JO uoodosd BNUBABI By} SPOY BAIBSA. SIL| (454 cl dMasaY IOl diysiauled JISBM 2UYSPIOXO
‘91/510g Ul sueo) Buikedas pue s108[0Jd X|TV'S [B18ASS Buipun) 0} anp s1 91/G1L0g Ul JUBWPSAOW By ] L8 18 18 sowieyog Abssul XvVS
S1S00 SOURUBIUIBW PUR JIBAAJ 8ININY PUNJ O) PASN 3q O 12 12 1z JIeJ ] {EOUOISIH - YIBd N0DSY IpISANUN0D
‘JUBWBAOW BbJR| BU) 30UBY ‘91L/510g BULND BpeW Udaq DAY BAI9SaI SIY)
0] SI9}SUBl} JEUONIPPE ‘LB WINIPSL B} DA JUNODY Buniied au) uo sainssaid 1Se0aI0) puny 01 “BINIeIS AG PaUlep 1. Pasn ag ued
SaluoW 853U} Yolym 10} sasodind auL *(SG UONISS) $861 10V UoHBINBSY el L PeoY By} JO uoieiado By} JOpUn UBsLIe sey SHAINS SIU L Ve 0z8‘L 984°L 1872 085'2- 6/8°L Bunped 10 19248 UQ
£1/910g Ul {iom uonebisaAul sabipug poddns 0} pasn 8 MOU [m UOHNGUILOD Jabpng Jjo sUQ LE L8 i) BAI8SaY Hodsuel] pue sAemybiH
3%3
EX €581 8SLL 569 526 1~ 8862 SOBS 18101
“SUONEDRSOAUl SPIEpUE]S DUIPEIL X9jawod JO 1500
ay) poddns 0; pue sals sigjigaes | pue AsdAY abpuqpay pue Aojeaym ayi 1e seale Aejd Oy SIUBWIBACIAWI JO) POSN B( jiIM DAIBSBI SIYL 951 951 951 anesay Aloles Aunwwod
uaWAINDS [| JO |eMaua) PUB YoM JUBIPAY 2.1 PR3SDPNAUN 10) Pasn 8q 0 /91 91 61- 98l aMBsaY Buluueld Aouabiaws g anosey B il
"SSILOYINE B1) SYI18g PUE SHONG YIM B1USD [041U0D) Bll4 8Y) JO uonejuswldw| 3y} uoddng 0] 656 65E 65€ [o4uoY all4
81/£102 Ul Alllqisuodses siy) 0) Buneal
ainssaid Aue pioA. 0} pue Ue(d [BIOUBY WLS) WNIpaW 3y} Ul 186png $10Q U Uo uopsod ay) abeuew 0 Pa)senbal aAI9Sa) MON G6- 062 569 569 (S710Q) spienbejes Auaqgr jo uopeAud
“PUBIBUT SHN WO} PaLIejsuBR.] AJRUIBLIO ASUOW - }98J}S JP
1SOM 2E L PUe OE L O Syiom Bulobul Joj Aed o} paulejas soueleq - dnoJs) Juswabeuel Juior 8y) Aq paaibe se sieak 2Jmny Ul pasn 8q o oL oL 2L 28 anvsay 18bpng pajood sangesia ac_c_mmA
dnoig) JuawabeuRy JUIOr 8yY) AQ paalbe Se SIeak aininy U pasn 8q o) PG- ppS aMesaY J8bpng pajood sallliqesiq [edIsAud
dnoug) JusuisBRUBI JUIOr 8Y) A paaitie Se SIBaA 2Inynj Ul pasn aq 0 1LE LLE 062"~ 199'L BanBsaY Jabpng pejood 8|doad ‘_mo_ﬂ
moaﬁ
099'L [099°T Ly 6L 1" SE0°E FLERIED
Jawdinba jo Juswaoe(dal 8y} PUB 801AIBS UONUBAUI AJBT BU) Uit $308(0d SNOLIBA pun} 0] z z - © BAIBSBY 901G UOUBAIRI] Al
"9}e4 UOISIDAUOD AWBPEOE PaJIS|90JR. JO) PaUIB)S) 80UE(E] BUIUIBWAI INq ‘9102
iidy Woj 10U %0/E3 18 PEUBBIIEUEL Useq Sey 16apNg "91/51L0Z Ul 90IAI3S UOISIBALOD SBIWSPEIY JO S1S00 199w 0} paydde 3 (983 601} 601 601 poddng UoISIaAUOD) SalwepedY
“Seale JaLI0 Uo Juads aq JOuUEeD Se
£1/9102 01Ul udxe) sAejep JuswinIod) o} anp Juadsun Buipun) poddns 19180 BUnoA ‘sainssaid Buyyels 819 [B100S PUR ‘S1SO0 UOIISURL)
SBLOH s,U4P|IYO M3 0} palldde %0253 "91/51L02 AluBS Ul 10BAU0D Aemyled Jo uonejuawadwi 0} paidde Buipuny Aemured %9023 98- S8 91eQ [BI00G S,uaJp|IyD
| liwe Bulauy L sy J0j buipung PS1L L PSL'L 00 000°L- pSL'L sajiwe Buiauy)
“(WOLS"03) PUNg UONUBAIBIUY [00UIS PUE (W LE"03) SBNUd) Loieonpl
JoopinQ ‘(Wz20°03) pieog bujprenbejes s,uaip|iyd S1IUSPIOXQ SBPNIOU} "493D UIUIM SBOIAISS [R1219WW00 yoddns o) pasn aq o, 1 881 881 949 vv8 S90IMIBG |eI0IBWWOY 4830
4830
SanIaSIY 2)e4030341a
laig Z8ECL €0LcL BET' | €97 L 888l 91e10}3211q SS04J €101
- 08 08 G8.- EE] SSARENIU| JUSWUISAOL)
‘91/G102 Ul S108l04d | O| 8bJ| [I2ABS PUN) O] PISN SEM SAI9SS SiU) JO JUNOUIR BbIB| v €lc- |24 syoefoid 101
JUBID YBSH Jlignd WEBD 13 PUR JUBIL) S|00YDS PaledIpeg WO 83 Sapn|oul JSBa104 L1€ 5058 288'8 e L1G'9- /95'v1 BAI9SaY SUONNQUIUOY pUB SJUBIL)
b8 PUB SSIOIYBA 9IIAIBS BNISOY R B4 10} bUIPUN) SBPN|OUl }SBIBI0S 19 208’ \p'e 908 881- AN 2/959Y JuswdINb] PUB J[IIYIA
SoAIasaY 9]ei0}0aIlq SS0ID
8902 +89'02 v89°0C SaMaS3Y S[00U9S
SOAI9SY SnusAdY
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
Areuswwod 1508104 Ateniga o1 2102 yosep 1g e snjesay anesay 9102
2ouBleg BuISO|D) UINPNQ |SB 1SBD8ID} S,yIUoW 1587 7102 Yosew & | 0 suonnguiuog | wos; suonngiuog idy 1
uoIsinolg ul abueyg Je souejeg JUBWIBAOK je souRlRg S8AI8S3Y payleule]
1119102

S3AHISIH A3NYVALY3I

£102 14dy SZ - 13NI9YD

uoday Asaaijag Abajens ssauisng pue Bunojluop |eroueul



L 81 |8v9'06 v£8°06 |129G°L |1898°22- 12€L'90 L | SOAISSY [ejo L
8682 868'TY |2stL- 0S€°0S Saniasay i3Ul0 1e10L
662 L 652°L _va.h. L12'8 S9AI8S8Y MOl yse |ejol
65C1 [65¢ 1 csvL- [A¥A:] L1/9102 01 ¥1/€10¢ - 9A8Say 190png
SaAlasay MOjd ysed
|Essve £85'vE £55°vE SeAlesay jende) [Bl0L
"Pa.INodu) I SIS0O Sk Pasinbal Buidg SUMOP MBID U)im Jeak Yyoea apewW aq 0} Bk SUOHNGLIUOD Jejuls "awwesibold [eydes
ayy Joj Buipuny paseaiou; Joj Bumoliog Jo S1S09 aU) 198w 0} $5390.d Buas 96PN B0/800Z U} JO LRd SB PaIBaIO SeM SAISSaI SIUL LOS0k L0801t LOE0k aniesay bumouiog [enuspnid
“YIMOIE
pauue|d spoddns yeu @1njonuselul Jo uoisirold Ajswn sy ‘Buipuny piemioy yBNoay} ‘BjelIoR) O} PALSIRISe UBaq SBY dAISA) SIL 61 V61 Y61 aA19s9Y Soley ssauisng
"108101d SBWIOH $,UBJP|IYD dY) UO 8SN Joj DAIBSaY UiBaH d1and
3U) WO WIZF BPMYOUI SUORNQUILCY “sJesA aimny ul asnppusdxs (eyides Buloueul Jo asodind ay) Joy PaYSIGRIS USSY SBY 9AI9SAI Sy 85.'€2 8622 86.'eC anlesay _s_%h
saniesoy |eydeS
980°L 980°L 980°L aniasay doueinsul
A10S3Y J9U)
81 0SL'LYy 9€6'LY 29S'L ELy'SL- 28L'SS SIAIISIY INUIAY |€)0,
9.87C 9.8°C 98°C |ej0] 3je10dio)
"UB|d [BIOURBUIH WD WNIP3N 8y} puB saibis)el)s $S8UISNQ 8y} JO uolejuswa(dwi sy} Hoddns o) pasn bulag s| 918881 SIY . 9.8'2 9/8'2 9182 BMasay Aoualolyg
‘leA0LddR JouIgeD O} 198IQNS ‘SjusWwabue.lE JuswabeURLW 18DbPNQ $,[19UN0D) AIUNOD BUY) UM 22UBPI0DOR
ul s1eaA [eioueul) usamiag sebpng Juads JoA0 pue Japun premio) A11ed 0} siebeurw 19BpNg SMO||B BAI8S8) PIEMIO ALIBD) ByL amnasay piemiod Aue)
ajesodiod
[6gt- £08°L1 VIO LL 626'S 0S92~ S6E°EL S9AI3SaY 33810303110
769 1259 0EL 700~ 1€6 S301095 91€I00107) [EI0L
0k} puk SDUIPJING UOles]SIDaY 9y} DUIYSIgIN}a) 10} pasn @Q O] 0P 0V BOIAIRS UOIBLSIDaY
‘91953 SIY) 0] paJIdjsuel) 8g |Iim Jepbpng
SUOKOBIF |10UNCY By} UO huadsiapur Aue aoe|d s)e) SUONDS|T AJUNOD OU BIBUM SIBIA U[ "SUOND3(@ BININ) PUNy 0} PASN aq |IM SIYL 219 119 0ct 8% 901AM9G S49U0I0D
S1/71L02 U1 108l01d By} HOddns O) pasn Sem Siy ) or or ov 221G S,48U0I0D
|e10] s921Mag der0dio)
e £€9°L 665°L 189’ _mwm.m. 324 3%3 (€101
"Wa}SAS JusSLISDeUBW AIBIGH 9Al05)jS UE UIRJUIBWL O} 2JEMDIEY 3 61eM}JOS ajepan O} posn aq 0 869 869 e 0v6 SAI558Y SSOIAISS [RINND
swiwe,BoId Buluiel) 18yoea) 91eNpels diysiaulied SiIUSWeyYBUNONg  SIYSPIOIXQ SU} J0) BUIpUny sous)-bull 0} §| 8AIBSBI SIYL diyssauped asysweysunong - S1IYSPIOIXQ
SUOIINQLIUOD SWBYDS Jal|81 POO|) 8BOUBABAUOD UIBISIAN PIOJXO PlOY O 06/ 052 0S. BOURABAUOD) UIBISBM PIOIXO
126pNQ UBY) SS3} S| PBAISISI BLIODUL Ji PUBASISAO LR JO BSED Ul ADUBBURUOD aniasay Juswabeuely Asuop
109[01d S8OIAISS JBWOISND BIIYSPIOIXQ DUILIOSURI] BY) PUB 81Ua0) 391AISS JBWOISNY) aU) dojaAap 0} pash aq 0] 29- 29 saniasay uswdopasg SO0
Algjuswwo) 18808104 A1Bnigad 0} L10Z UOIBIN LE 1B aniesay anesay 910z
aoue(eg BuIso|) uININQ [Se 1Se0a104 S,yjuow 1se 1102 Uorew Lg | O} suonnauiuog | wos) suonnguiuog iy &
uoisinoac ut abueud 1e aduejeg JUBWBAOW 1e 20uElRg SaaRsaY payeuney
2173102

¥ xauuy

S3AHISIH GIHNHVYALVYI

2102 judy SZ - 13NIGVD

poday Auanlaq Abajes sssuisng pue Bunojuop (e1dueuild



Financial Monitoring and Business Strategy Delivery Report

CABINET - 25 April 2017

General Revenue Balances

Annex 5

Date Forecast 2016/17 Budget 2016/17
£m £m £m
General Balances: Outturn 2015/16 18.984 17.517
County Fund Balance 18.984 17.517
Planned Contribution to Balances 2.000 2.000
Planned Contribution from Balances
Original forecast outturn position 2015/16 20.984 19.517
0.000 0.000
Calls on balances deducted
Oct-16 Network & Asset Management - Transport Infrastructure Code -0.121
Oct-16 Legal Services - counsel expenditure pressure -0.300
Total calls on balances -0.421 -2.000
Automatic calls on/returns to balances
0.000
Additional Strategic Measures
0.000
0.000
Net General Balances 20.563 17.517
Total Balances including Severe Weather Recovery Scheme Grant 20.563 17.517
Total Gross Expenditure Budget 798.025 798.025
Balances as a % of Gross Expenditure 2.58% 2.20%
20.563
Calis on / returns to balances agreed but not actioned
0.000
Calls on / returns to balances requested in this report
0.000
Forecast Variation at Year End
Less forecast directorate overspend (as set out in Annex 1) -5.251
Feb-17 Forecast underspend for on - call firefighters 0.523
Feb-17 Legal Services - counsel expenditure pressure -0.200
Revised Outturn position 15.635

Page 49



o
T

1dwox3y X3 (€002 Jov ©7) Aeuoyaiosig a
ssaulsng UoN aN sluswebuely AloInelg VS pieo A1RiqI| UMO JIBy} Uo pio SIeak G Japun ualp|iyo Aq pamoliog syooq ainjaid pue siepuiupiy@
pajey olaz HzZ peliqiyold Aloiners ds ‘818189 18)50} paielsiBal ‘esed oygnd ul usipjiyo ‘pasledw Buipeas ‘s1BWoiSNd B3IA18S AlBIG)| BWOY pUe Sispeal Pjoyssnoy Ag pamolloq mxoong
(%0z2) 9ley piepueis HS Buibieys uo uonisod jebe :saseo Bumol|of ayy ui pabieys aq jou |m sabieyo enpie
SSe|D LVA
aN 1VA 01108lgns| %002 02’13 L1/¥0/10 00'13 91/L0/10 |oosed pue| [euClIppE Jod 1500
aN mou sebreyn| %992 08'LEZ L1L/v0/10 §8'623 941/20/10 (12lye 10 G /P BNP WO} 0BZUOD MBU) SBUDIBSS LOWIWOY | || Jo Alerodey
SIDHVHO ALIHOHLNV NOILVHLSIDIH SNOWNOD suowwo) pue deyy aagiuyaqg ose-23a3
INJWIDVNVIN LISSVY B MHOMLIN £-233
ajes Ajrep (ares Ajrep)
aN peseaioul| %0°02 0€°03 L1/S0/10 5203 SHYO/EL 98m Isiy Bunp uado Areiqy Aep Jad Jesherd Jad - 201MBS BU}
abieyo enplaaQ (g| soueul jjas o]
S13S AV1d/IVHLSIHOHO /YO0A a asinleg Ateaq 19-2030
SIIJIAHES TVHNLIND 9-2030
ebueyp
10} uoseay sabieyo p aley ajeq aleq 99IAI9S JO Buibieys
1o/pue S99} Ul pasodoig ETNE T ajey 8A199)] abieyo jo adA) soAllalqo uo
sse|) uolewlojui aseadu] % Buibieyn uolusod BalY 90IAIOS ‘Jod
1VA leuolIpPPY 81/410C 21/9102 leba

Bg Xouuy

SIADHVHO 334DV ATSNOIATHd OL SLNIWANINY -STOHVHO B S334

£10Z |Mdy Sz - 1INIFVD
uoday Aenljeg ABeleilg ssauisng pue bunojiuoly [e1aueulq



gg Xauuy

” ¢ Page 51

1dwiexg X3
ssaulsng UoN aN (e00z v ©7) Areuonesosiq
pojey oi87 dz sjuswsbueuy Aoinjels v
(1102 Uer ¥ %02) sley piepuels ds palqiyold Alonjelg d
§se|D LVA Buibieys uo uopisod |eba
X3 WNBSNN 81YSPIOIXO 2UI|00'653 LL/70/10 8s( uoneonp3 - Aep ted -
X3 Yum aulj ul oq o} sebreyo meN [00°523 LL/PO/L0 a3 uoeonp3 Aep z/| -
sesjwaid Aeiqy jo e (e ‘JoB.e) 8WooU]
NOILYAGOWWOOOV 40 IHIH| pue sjsod joaw o] a 20198 Aleaqn 19-2030
S3JIAH3S vdNLIND 9-2030
abueyn
10} uoseay aley ajeq 22IAIBS JO Buibieyos
lo/pue pasodo.d BA1993 abueyo jo adAL saAlloalqo uo
sse|n uojew.ojul Bulbieyn uojsod ealy 991A1eS 1oy
1VA leuoiippy 81/L10C |efa

S4DHVHD ® §334 A3S0d0dd M3N

£10Z udy 52 - 1INIgvo
uodoay Aanlleg AbBejesyg ssauisng pue Huuonuoly jeioueuly




%01 8.2'v1- 818°6E1L %C8 %29 659'v2 802'8L 1244 £LE‘SL 68V VL~ GE592S S66°00V ovs szl LL2'5es 289°s8¢ 620°071 IVLOL 1TIVHIAO
%0 L6y ove's 96~ 99~ 00€- ov6'8L LYS'8L 66€ 016'6L L12'6L 669 SoAI9sdY _oov:m:.:mu.a
. )
%SS Ae] 8Lt %26 %26 0 059't 0 0 0 G8G'S 008'¢ S8L'L G8S'S 008'€ S8.°)L |euded |e207 S|00Yds g
Yol~ V166~ 0EE‘EEL %28 %29 659'vC 8S5°9L 88.°1 L16°S) 68LVL- v00°2rY 8Y9°8LE 95€°€Cl ﬁw L2'ovy 1L29°20€ SpSLEL sawweiBold 910309410 _Soh
%0€- 6.0'€- 66201 %9G %61 LLS 2Ls'e _wk S..'8 L66'L- 9€8've 9L9LL 0ce'L 850'72 L¥8'8 L12'Sh $90)A19g Bjei0diod
- o
%S~ 08609~ 6E9°L1L %99 %l L 6.8'C 0c8 000'€- LL'L 2LLp £260'82 805'ce 685'S £60'LE oge'Le 19/'6 juawdojarag Auadoad 1Yo
- 2 Awou003 % Jswuoiaug
o « ‘ o " . 0 ’ , . g . . . . 5 uodsuels )
%SG~ Sey'e- 8€L'LY %EL %S £¥5'6 SSv'ee YEY'E 7S8' ocy'L- 861'CLL 588°'L21L £Le'sy 9691 LEO'EZ ) €EL'9Y - | AWwouos3 @ WaWUOHAUT
%SE S16'e 2z %18 %9L 189 8/S'LE 0 o} 0 v..'8E S19'€e 6S1'SL v/.'8E sig'ee 651Gt saojeg Ayunwwo) % jejoos
Yot see'e- ¢ %96 K374 0'LL €61'LE 9.9 EYANE 009- 660'LLL 20'L21 S20'08 €25'9L4 8v8'SZh S/9'0S POOK
%t €e'c Okv'es G oY 6¢ | Saljjuse-] 3 UOHEBINPT ‘UBIPIIYD
% $000.3 $000.3 % % S000,3 $000.3 $000.3 $000.3 $000.3 $000.3 $000.3 $000.3 $000.3 $000.3 $000.3
uoneueA ey 2lep
- sjuswwwo) SIedp JeDA SIBDA FL-CYN SIBIA ABSA
$32.Nn0s3ay uonelea dBaA usun) 2 sjenioy “_nﬂw__«_mw__wﬂmwm SUANWIWOYD |0} m._”wg__n“vconxo eljol aiming a1y eyl aning waLny felol aanng waung
joasn P 3 lenoy 9jel0199.1Q
(9102 Atenigag 1ounod) swweiboig (2102 924 11ounoY)
saje
jeutbliQ 03 pasedwios souewopsd Bupioyuol 2anypuadx3 e LD uoneLen Lt LER LA awweiboud jeyde) paaosddy isare
Aewwng

12/0202 - 21/910Z dwweiboid |eyded
£102 114dy Sz 18uige) - woday Buuoyuol (eidueuly

B/ X3UUy



Annex 7b

Financial Monitoring Report - Cabinet 25 April 2017
Capital Programme 2016/17 - 2020/21

In-year Expenditure Forecast Variations

Previous | Revised
Project / Programme Name 2016/17 | 2016/17 | Variation Comments
Forecast* | Forecast

£000s | £000s | £000s

Children. Education & Families Capital Proaramme

Existing Demographic Pupil Provision 3,850 3,100 -750| Projects being developed. Draw down of budget

i(Basic Needs Programme) provision for the projects below. Reprofile of Sept 2017
programme.

SS Phillip & James School — land for 0 200 200| Stage 2 approved. On-site.

additional Playing Field (ED851)

Drayton - Expansion to 1FE (ED886) 0 50 50| Stage 2 approved.

Schools Access Initiative 300 250 -50[Capital Programme contingency returned.

Schools Accommodation Intervention & 25 0 -25|Capital Programme contingency returned.

Support Programme
lLoans to Foster/Adoptive Parents 25 ¢} -25

(Prudentially Funded)

CE&F TOTAL IN-YEAR VARIATION -600

Environment & Economy - Highwavs & Transport Capital Proaramme

iinkseylHilliéorthboundiSiipiFioad i &g S Capital project development to be put on hold whilst

further revenue options appraisal work completed.

[Milton Interchange 1,443| 2,427 984)Completed May 20186. Increasing construction costs -
budget increase approved Cabinet 23 February 2016.
Further increase agreed Feb 17

Eastern Arc Phase 1 Access to Headington 3,635 1,936 -1,699| Total cost est £12.5m. LGF funding confirmed. Stage 1
approved Cabinet 23 Feb 16 . Stage 2 approved July
16.

Didcot Northern Perimeter Road 3 (project 332 131 -201|Construction start due July 17 however funding not yet

development) secured. Extension of project development budget

approved CAPB August 16. Funding for delivery via
LGF and s106 not yet secured. Stage 1 BC Dec
Cabinet tbc - dependent on confirmation of LGF/s106

funding
A34 Lodge Hill Slips (project development) 150 25 -125|Funding for delivery via LGF and s106 not yet secured.
Milton Park Employment Access Link: 586 200 -386| Pipeline removal to commence end of March -
Backhill Tunnel complete July. Main works September 16. £140k

scope reduction.
Other small adjustments 142

TRANSPORT TOTAL IN-YEAR

VARIATION 1,420

Environment & Economy Capital Proaramme (Excludina Transport)

Broadband (OxOnline) Project 6,172 2,000 4,172

E&E TOTAL IN-YEAR VARIATION -4,172

Corporate Services Capital Programme
IBicester Library (CS13) 115 147 32| Works Complete March 16. Funding spread over

several years in line with this programme.

Culham Advanced Manufacturing Hub & 0] 178 178|Grant made on behalf of the LEP and will be repaid
other GPF projects through retained business rates.

Didcot Station Car Park Expansion 9,007 500 -8,507|External delivered project - reprofile release of
(contribution) contribution

Northway and Marston Flood Alleviation 0 300 300]New project: LEP Funded

CORPORATE SERVICES TOTAL IN- -7.997
LYEAR VARIATION i

CAPITAL PROGRAMME TOTAL IN-YEAR 14.189

VARIATION ——

*As approved by Council (Feb 2017)

Page 53



Financial Monitoring Report - Cabinet 25 April 2017
Capital Programme 2016/17 - 2020/21

New Schemes & Budget Changes

Annex 7c

Comments

Support Programme

Previous | Revised
Project / Programme Name Total Total Variation

Budget* Budget

£'000s £'000s | £'000s
Children. Education & Families Cabital Proaramme
Existing Demographic Pupil Provision 71,695 71,444 -251
(Basic Needs Programme)
S8 Phillip & James School — land for 0 3601
additional Playing Field (ED851)

|Drayton - Expansion to 1FE (ED886) 6 548 542
Schools Access Initiative 1,800 1,750 -50
Schools Accommodation Intervention & 425 400 -25

360|Stage 2 approved. On-site.

Projects being developed. Draw down of budget
provision for the projects below. Additional S106
resources for future year projects within programme.

Stage 2 approved.
Capital Programme contingency returned.
Capital Programme contingency returned.

ICE&F TOTAL PROGRAMME SIZE

VARIATION 576
IEnvironment & Economyv - Hiaghwavs & Transport Capital Proaramme
Milton Interchange 11,560 12,544 984|Completed May 2016. Increasing construction costs -
budget increase approved Cabinet 23 February 2016.
Further increase agreed Feb 17
Oxford Science Transit Phase 2 - A40 500 3,500 3,000|Stage 1 BC approved by Cabinet in February 2017.
Public Transport improvements (project
development)
Oxford Queen's Street Pedestrianisation 1,970 1,470 -500{Full funding now agreed by LEP. Stage 1 BC due to
(project development) December 16 Cabinet.
Milton Park Employment Access Link: 807 667 -140|Pipeline removal to commence end of March -
Backhill Tunnel complete July. Main works September 16. £140k
scope reduction.
Other small adjustments 90
*
TRANSPORT TOTAL PROGRAMME SIZE 3434
VARIATION ’
Environment & Economy Capital Proaramme (Excluding Transport)
|Broadband (OxOnline) Project 22,752 19,752 -3,000|Phase 1 costs significantly lower than expected.
E&E TOTAL PROGRAMME SIZE .3.000
VARIATION .
Corporate Services Capital Proaramme
Culham Advanced Manufacturing Hub & 3,851 4,029 178|Grant made on behalf of the LEP and will be repaid
other GPF projects through retained business rates.
Northway and Marston Flood Alleviation 0 600 600|New project: LEP Funded

CORPORATE SERVICES TOTAL
PROGRAMME SIZE VARIATION

778

CAPITAL PROGRAMME TOTAL

PROGRAMME SIZE VARIATION

1,788

*As approved by Council (Feb 2017)

Page 54



Agenda Item 8

Division(s): All

CABINET - 25 APRIL 2017
ADOPT THAMES VALLEY REGIONAL ADOPTION AGENCY

Report by Deputy Director for Children’s Social Care

Purpose/Recommendation

e To approve plans for Oxfordshire County Council to join and host the
Regional Adoption Agency (Adopt Thames Valley) as a shared service with
the other partner authorities.

¢ Note that ‘in principle’ approval was given by Cabinet in November 2016, but it
was agreed that a final decision would come back to Cabinet once all partners
had confirmed the detail of:

— the budget and funding formula for Local Authority contributions;
— scope of services (service specification); and
— legal governance structure.

Background

1. Work is well underway developing Adopt Thames Valley (ATV) as a shared
service model between seven local authorities (Bracknell Forest, Oxfordshire,
West Berkshire, Windsor and Maidenhead, Wokingham, Swindon and Reading)
in partnership with two Voluntary Adoption Agencies (PACT and Barnardos).

2. The Regional Adoption Agency (RAA) will provide adoption services across the
geographical area of the participating local authorities. It aims to deliver better
outcomes for children and adopters whilst also reducing costs through economies
of scale for the local authorities participating.

3. The Government have stated that they expect every local authority to be part of
an RAA or to have delegated their adoption functions to one by 2020.

4. Adopt Thames Valley is being developed with the support of the Department for
Education, who have also provided grant funding for the set up.

5. The key benefits of the Adopt Thames Valley Model are:

a) improved outcomes for children through the availability of a larger pool of
adopters;

b) improved ability to place harder to place children for adoption (e.g. older
children, children with disabilities, sibling groups and BME children);

C) improved experience for adopters through quicker matches with children

who need placements;

Page 55



CA8

d) better value for local authorities through economies of scale in the
recruitment and assessment process for adopters;

e) potential savings for local authorities through placing children with adopters
more quickly (i.e. saving foster care costs); and

f) improved adoption support services across a wider geographical area.

Progress Update

6. In November 2016, Cabinet gave approval ‘in principle’ to joining and hosting the
RAA, subject to final approval on the following areas, which are now complete: i)
the budget and financial contributions, ii) the scope of services (RAA service
specification) and iii) the legal governance structure. An update on all these areas
is provided in the following sections of this report.

7. In addition, good progress has been made on all other areas and the project is on
track for go-live on 1% November. In particular to note, the new staffing structure
and the commissioning intentions of the new RAA have both been approved by all
partners.

Service Specification

8. The Service Specification for Adopt Thames Valley has been agreed by all
partners. It will build on the success of the organisations that have come together
to create it to be even more efficient and effective. It will focus improvements
on:

e High quality matches for children and adopters;

e Using the large geographical area to recruit more adopters who match the
needs of children in the ATV area; and

e High quality adoption support at every stage of the adoption journey.

9. All activity in the RAA will ensure compliance with requirements set by legislation,
regulation, national minimum standards and local procedures. The RAA will
operate under an agreed performance management framework and will be
subject to inspection and periodic audit (self-audit, peer review etc.).

10. Services in scope of Adopt Thames Valley are as follows:

¢ Recruitment and assessment of adopters

e Family Finding, Matching & Early Placement Support, including linking with
social work teams

e Post Adoption Activity, including letterbox and birth relative support

e Adoption Processes, including adoption panels, adoption advisors and
medical advisors

e Financial Activity and Performance Management, including adoption data
collection for Ofsted/ ALB and administering the Adoption Support Fund

Page 56



CA8

e Adoption and Special Guardianship (SGO) Support, including case work
support, buddying or mentoring, access to support groups and other practical
support, therapeutic support and birth relative support.

Budget

11.Extensive work has taken place to map and understand existing spend. The
objectives of this work have been to: i) develop a prudent and robust budget that
will enable ATV to deliver adoption services to a good standard, and ii) to identify
the fairest, most reasonable and transparent basis for agreeing the contribution
required from each of our local authority partners.

12.1n preparing the budget we have held a workshop attended by all local authorities’
service managers and accountants to agree the principles of the budget and
funding contributions. We have analysed levels of demand and activity, designed
a staffing structure linked to projected levels of activity (staffing is the largest area
of spend in the budget). We have also modelled various options for how funding
contributions could be shared across all local authorities, before agreeing on the
proposed mechanism.

Cost Share Mechanism

13.All local authority partners have agreed that the local authority funding
contributions to the RAA should be based on a rolling 3-year average of adoption
placements. This mechanism was deemed to be the fairest measure to directly
link cost to activity, it also smooths budget fluctuations by using a rolling average.

14.In budget terms, the Adoption and SGO support services are being treated
differently to the rest of the RAA service. It was agreed that for the first year of
operation, existing adoption support budgets will remain as they currently are, and
each authority will draw down the level of service they contribute (i.e. if an
authority supplies 1.5 FTE social worker staff for adoption support, they will be
deployed to provide adoption/ SGO support in that area). In the first year of
operation, Adoption and SGO Support will be reviewed and costed, based on
evidence informed practice and agreed outcomes. As part of this review, a
separate cost share mechanism may be required for adoption support based on a
different measure of activity. This may result in changes to the required
contribution for this area of work in future years, but forms part of a separate
process to be approved by the Adopt Thames Valley Board.

Page 57



CA8

15.The table below shows the adoption placement data used to drive the funding
contributions of all authorities from go live until 31 March 2019, when the formula
will be updated with the next data set:

g':t‘;eme“ts 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 3 Year Average | Cost Share %
Oxfordshire 48 39 47 45 46.9%
Reading 23 12 13 16 16.8%
Bracknell 8 9 3 7 7.0%

Swindon 6 7 23 12 12.6%

RBWM 9 2 3 5 4.9%
Wokingham 3 1 6 3 3.5%

West Berks 6 13 5 8 8.4%

Total 103 83 100 95 100.0%

16. Budget shares are calculated on the basis of the percentage share of the overall
number of placements, so with the current 3yr average this would look as follows:

Adoption Cost | Adoption Support - Fixed

3 Year Average Share Share Initiall;rl) : Total
Oxfordshire 1,201,116 321,378 1,622,494
Reading 430,250 106,990 537,240
Bracknell 179,271 60,620 239,891
Swindon 322,688 88,263 410,951
RBWM 125,490 73,470 198,960
Wokingham 89,636 98,860 188,496
\West Berkshire 215,125 40,890 256,015
Total (£) 2,563,576 790,471 3,354,047

Transitional budget arrangements

17.When using the 3yr average of placements to assess each local authorities’ share
of the RAA budget, it identified some significant changes (both increases and
decreases) when compared to current budgets. There are a multitude of reasons
for this, and such differences are not unusual for this kind of service.

18.1n order to smooth the transition for all local authorities into this new RAA budget,
it was recommended that for the first 12months (from go live, Nov 2017) local
authorities would contribute their current budget (less the target 5.6% saving).

19. This was a pragmatic and strong partnership approach which the recommended
in order to ensure all partners could agree to the budget and joining the RAA. It
avoids any authority having any major unplanned changes within the remainder of
the current year budget (i.e. between Nov 17 — Mar 18), and it smooths the
transition into next year’s budget (18/19).

20.The funding formula for the RAA(i.e. 3 year rolling average of placements) has
been approved, but the recommendation regarding the transitional budget
arrangement needs agreement from all Local Authorities. At the time of writing
this is still under discussion. If this is not concluded by 25 April Cabinet meeting,

Page 58



CA8

Cabinet are asked to give delegated approval on this matter to the Director of
Children’s Services in consultation with the Lead Member.

21.The table and graph below is based on a go live date of 1 November and shows
the expected budget for Oxfordshire over the first 29 months of ATV (i.e. 5
months of part 17/18 year operation, plus the first 2 full years 18/19 and 19/20).

22.In reality, the year 2 (2019/20) budget estimate is indicative, because budget
shares will be re-calculated on the latest 3 year average placement data (adding
in 2017/18), which is unknown at this stage. Activity for each authority could be
higher or lower than the last 3yr average, and accordingly the budget share could
go up or down.

Oxfordshire

1,400,000
1,200,000

1,000,000
800,000
600,000
400,000 -
200,000 —EI I
0 -

5 Montt5Bdgeh 100% TrEnsiak Sardy @EAEeS fEnadsitivear U1 8itgs 096 Tvimsttish)
Oxfordshire| 472,049 | 439,655 | 1,132,917 | 1,142,381 | 1,115,982 | 1,201,116

23.The table above shows the contribution from OCC increasing in the second full
year, as the transitional protection is removed from the budget. This is because
OCC had a good year for adoptions in 2016/17; therefore the 3 year average for
Oxfordshire is relatively high. However the data which will be used for the budget
share in year 2 is not yet available and therefore the position will change when
the new data is utilised. This increased contribution will be offset against the lower
than budget contribution in Year 1 and will be managed within the broader
Corporate Parenting budget.

24 1t is important to note that if placements, and therefore budget shares, increase,
this should be deemed as a positive. This is a positive outcome in terms of family
finding solutions for children and adopters, but also a positive outcome financially
because an adoptive placement means significant cost avoidance in Looked After
Children budgets.

Page 59



CA8

Overall Budget

25. The table below shows the overall RAA budget based on decisions made to date.

There remains some risk of change within this budget, particularly around precise
staffing costs (due to TUPE arrangements and final job evaluation and grading
agreement) and premises (where lease arrangements are yet to be agreed).

Total Adoption Adoption Total

Services Support
Total Staffing Costs 1,895,000 678,000 2,573,000
Travel & Expenses: 41,000 14,000 55,000
Training, CPD & Service Development: 4,100 1,400 5,500
Contracts: 143,000 307,173
Joint Commissioning 2,476 9,903 12,378
Memberships/Subscriptions: 15,000 15,000
Adoption Costs: 105,000 105,000
Interagency Spend 500,000 500,000
Panel Costs: 23,000 23,000
Premises Costs: 56,000 19,000 75,000
Interagency Income: (500,000) (500,000)
Contingency: 91,000 2,168 115,000
Total RAA Service Budget Required 2,375,576 724,471 3,100,046
Overheads: 188,000 66,000 254,000
Total RAA Budget Requirement 2,563,576 790,471 3,354,046
Current Budgeted Spend 2,752,458 790,471 3,642,929
Overall Reduction -188,882 0 -188,882

Saving target

26. The RAA budget for adoption services (excluding adoption support which remains

the same for year one) represents an overall reduction of 5.6% compared to the
current budgets reported by each authority. This is the saving target we are
seeking to achieve through economies of scale by establishing the RAA. This is in
addition to the less tangible savings which authorities will also make from
overhead budgets which do not transfer.

Payments

27. Authorities would be invoiced quarterly against the budgeted contributions for the

year in advance. A final invoice for the year in the case of an overspend will be
issued in early March based on the most recent monitoring position. Any
underspend or additional overspend would be carried forward to the new financial
year.

Variances to Budget

28. Any variances to the budget will be shared amongst the members of ATV on the

basis of the relevant cost sharing mechanism.

Budget Setting

29.The current proposal is that a draft budget for ATV will be set by the end of July

before the year it will apply to (e.g. July 2017 for 1 April 2018). This would take in
to account known or expected changes at this time (e.g. pay inflation) and new

Page 60



CA8

data sets for the cost mechanism. This will then allow each authority to identify
any material changes to their budgets at an early stage. The final budget would
be agreed by the board by the end of September to allow all authorities to make
changes to their budgets, if required, as part of their annual budget setting
processes.

Governance Structure

30. Oxfordshire County Council is not providing a service to the other authorities in

31.

the way that a paid contractor would. Nonetheless, the host authority is
responsible for delivery of these important functions and therefore needs to be
accountable to its partners (who retain the statutory duty to deliver these
functions).

Furthermore, all participating authorities will need to deliver their social care
functions in a way that supports Adopt Thames Valley in its work. The
arrangement therefore needs to be captured in a suitable legal agreement setting
out the scope of functions to be delivered by Adopt Thames Valley, what is
expected of the participants, its aspirations for performance and its duration.

32.The interim Adopt Thames Valley Board (comprising membership from all local

authorities and voluntary adoption agencies) agreed a two-tier Board structure as
follows:

e A Management Board, with membership comprising Deputy Directors and
Senior Voluntary Adoption Agency officers. This Board would approve major
operational and strategic decisions (e.g. changes to service specification and
setting budget). The Management Board would meet monthly at the
beginning, then moving to quarterly once well established.

e An Oversight Board, with membership comprising Directors of Children’s
Services (DSC) and Lead Members from all authorities. This Board would
receive reports and have oversight of performance. The Oversight Board
would meet twice a year at the beginning, with frequency to be reviewed.

e All operational, day to day decisions will reside with Oxfordshire County
Council as the host authority for the shared service.

33. A full legal agreement is being drawn up based on a shared service arrangement,

which partners will sign up to.

Equalities Implications

34.1t is not envisaged that the changes proposed will impact upon any protected

groups. Access and eligibility for adoption services would not be changed by
joining the RAA.

Page 61



CA8

RECOMMENDATION

35.The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to:
(a) agree to join and host Adopt Thames Valley; and
(b) If not concluded by 25 April Cabinet meeting, Cabinet are asked to
give delegated approval for the transitional budget arrangements to
the Director of Children’s Services in consultation with the Lead
Member.

HANNAH FARNCOMBE
Deputy Director for Children’s Social Care

Contact Officer Hannah Farncombe, 01865 815273

April 2017

Page 62



Agenda Item 9

Division(s): N/A

CABINET - 25 April 2017

Update on Fit for the Future Programme

Report by the Director of Finance

Introduction

In July 2016 Cabinet set out a vision for a new programme to transform the
council and how we deliver services in creative and joined up ways as well
as deliver £15m of savings. The new transformation programme has been
named Fit for the Future.

The Fit for the Future programme, along with other whole organisational
change will provide a robust and stable platform for the council over the
medium term, ensuring we are well placed to effectively meet residents' and
business needs, within our available budget.

The aim of the Fit for the Future transformation programme is to more
effectively join up our services, working with partners and communities to
deliver better outcomes for people and places.

The approach has also been informed by the work that has been undertaken
on a single unitary structure of local government in Oxfordshire. Much of this
thinking can also be applied to the role of the county council within the
current two tier arrangements for local government, which was also used to
inform the new senior management structure which became effective in
January 2017.

This report sets out the structure of the programme, progress on the
programme to date and the investment funding to deliver the programme.

Programme Outcomes

The key outcomes of the programme will deliver:

» Improved customer experience anytime, anywhere, simple and easy
access for residents and businesses.

» A One Council approach to service delivery that encourages
collaborative working across the council and remove systems and
processes that encourage silo working.

» The delivery of high quality management information and business
intelligence to support decision making.

Page 63



10.

11.

12.

CA9

» Redesigning our services to ensure they are digital by design using
cloud technologies and an integrated systems approach that focuses on
our customers.

» Enable savings of £15m to be delivered with a target date of 2018/19

Programme Structure

Due to the cross cutting nature of this programme, as it has developed the
way in which it is structured has been refined. The work streams comprise
the three enabling strands of Digital First; Business Efficiencies and Place
which sit alongside a Service Redesign work stream under which there is a
programme for each Directorate. The additional two work streams that had
previously identified of customer journey and workforce for the future are key
components of the service redesign work stream.

The cross council Project Management Office (PMO) which is operational
from April 2017 has been established for the specific purpose of supporting
the Fit for Future Programme as well being the sole authority on
project/programme management for the council.

A Project Management Charter has been agreed by the Fit for the Future
Board which sets out the process by which projects will be managed and
governed. The Fit for the Future Board will be responsible for prioritising
projects that come forward to ensure that resources are used effectively.

Programme Progress

There are three enabling work streams which will provide the functionality
and change required to improve frontline services as well as back office
functions. The aim of each work stream and progress to date is set out
below.

Digital First

This work stream aims to implement digital services and build the capability
to configure digital services to enable automation leading to improved
business processes for customers.

With the near completion of the procurement process for the digital platform,
users will be able to use online self-service for various transactions from
June 2017. Residents and other customers will be able to create accounts,
the benefits of which will enable the tracking of their own transactions and
requests thereby reducing the number of phone calls to check on progress.
Other enhanced transactions include web chat, online booking and payment
transactions. In addition, a test pilot has commenced for Verify, an online
service that allows users to confirm their identity once thus providing a
seamless and time saving web experience.

Page 64



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

CA9

Business Efficiencies

This work stream aims to improve back-office functions; making us more
efficient and adaptable by simplifying, streamlining, automating and
consolidating processes. The work of the digital first work stream is key to
enabling this.

The project to look at the creation of a business intelligence function for the
council has commenced. This is a strategic way of working with the
information that we collect and analyse and will enable us to make smarter
long-term decisions. The project is in its discovery phase with an online staff
survey to get staff input running in parallel with targeted stakeholder
interviews. It is anticipated that a soft test market exercise which will allow
for the determination of the best approach to gather data on activity which
will be used to shape future service delivery will take place in May. In
addition, the new electronic contract management system is currently being
populated and is expected to launch a full go ‘live’ in May.

Place

The Place work stream is designed to enable our services to meet the needs
of communities and to ensure we get the best value from our assets.
Working with all services and our partners, we are taking a ‘whole-place
approach’ to understanding the needs of local areas. The public sector
presence, both in terms of service delivery and property can then be
redesigned to best meet these needs.

Scoping work is underway to gather evidence and identify opportunities
within a range of services relating to place reviews and the creation of
community hubs or similar co-location and integrated models of service
delivery. We also continue to have broad strategic conversations with our
partners about their priorities and future plans. The scoping activity will
generate a suite of opportunities and priority areas which will then be formed
into a structured programme by the end of May, enabling us to then more
fully and openly engage with members, partners and ultimately the public on
the development, appraisal and implementation of these opportunities.

Service Redesign Principles

Service Redesign Programmes will cover a whole range of services and
functions. In shaping these, there should be a focus on the vision of the
overall programme which means they will incorporate the following
principles.

We will design services which:
e Have Community Hubs as the principal means of presence and
service delivery at local level
Improve the customer journey
Use our money wisely
Are designed using data and evidence
Are digital by design allowing people to help themselves:

Page 65



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

CA9

o Customers should be able to obtain what they want from the
council on-line and self-service as far as practicable

o There should be support face to face and by telephone for those
who might be digitally excluded

o Workflow and back-office process should be paperless and
automated

o Transactional functions should be digital and should be consistently
applied.

o A single website providing quick and easy access to council
services and information

o A single front-door for customer contact: virtual for digital access
and a single phone number for telephone access

o A single approach to on-line payments and financial transactions

Service redesign will also take account of phase 2 of the Senior
Management Review as approved by Cabinet in December 2016. This will
see a review of management below the Corporate Leadership Team using
the principles laid out in the Penna report which delivered the Senior
Management Review.

Investment Funding

In February 2016, Council approved one-off funding of £4m as a Transition
Fund to help meet the cost of delivering the savings needed across the
Council over the medium term. Of this £1m was ring-fenced to support
community initiatives for open access Children’s Services; £1m was set
aside for income generation pump priming. The remaining £2m was set
aside for transformation. Given the scope of the Fit for the Future
Programme, the £1m for income generation pump priming has been brought
under the remit of the programme.

Elsewhere on this agenda, the Financial Monitoring & Business Strategy
Delivery Report sets out an expected underspend on the Capital
Programme. Cabinet is recommended to approve a new budget provision in
the Capital Programme in 2017/18 for the Fit for the Future Programme and
ask for a business case to be produced to support the use of this funding.

The Efficiency Plan approved by Council in September 2016 also included a
Flexible use of Capital Receipts Strategy. This new flexibility enables local
authorities to use new capital receipts on projects where incurring up-front
costs will generate on-going savings and/or transform service delivery to
reduce costs or to improve the quality of service delivery in future years. Use
of £0.5m of capital receipts was agreed as part of this strategy.

In relation to the Service Redesign work stream, there is funding of £0.4m
for the Children’s Programme £150k from an earmarked reserve in
Children’s Services for ICT and £250k from a contribution from the
Dedicated Schools Grant agreed by Schools Forum for the review of high
needs.

Page 66



CA9

24. In total, one-off funding of £6.9m has been identified for the Fit for the Future
Programme. This investment will unlock the delivery of the planned £15m
on-going savings. Whilst some costs will fall in 2016/17, it is expected that
the majority will be in 2017/18. The use of the investment funding will be
kept under review and further investment may be required as the service
redesign programme develops. Whilst not definitive, the anticipated use of
the investment funding across the programme is set out in the table below.

Work Narrative Estimated

stream Investment
£m

Programme | Programme and project managers, business 1.0

capacity analysts etc.

Digital Technology resource & components, roll out 3.5

First of Windows 10, data centre etc.

Business Business intelligence project, contract 0.6

Efficiency management system, activity analysis

Place Community hubs 0.5

Service Demand management, single children’s 1.3

redesign system, high needs review

TOTAL 6.9

Delivery of Savings

25. The programme is on track to deliver the planned savings of £15m. Work is
underway to determine the details and timing of the savings. Progress
reports will be brought forward to Cabinet in due course and any necessary
changes to the savings profiling will be picked up as part of the Service &
Resource Planning process in the autumn.

Equality and Inclusion Implications

26. There are no equality and inclusion implications arising directly from this
report. Detailed impact assessments will be produced when the outcome
and implications of the individual service redesign projects are clear.

RECOMMENDATION

27. The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to:

(@) note the report;

(b) note the use of the £3m Transition Fund and £0.4.m from
Children’s Services to support the Fit for the Future Programme;
and

(c) approve the creation of a £3m budget provision in the Capital
Programme to support the Fit for the Future Programme.

LORNA BAXTER

Director of Finance

Contact Officer: Graham Shaw, Director of Customer Experience (Tel: 07939
069084) : April 2017

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



Agenda ltem 10

CABINET — 25 APRIL 2017

BUSINESS MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING REPORT
QUARTER 3 2016-17

Introduction

1. This paper provides details of Oxfordshire County Council’s performance for
quarter 3 (1 October — 31 December 2016) for Cabinet to consider. It also provides
an update on preparations for the new business year in 2017-18.

2. The report shows that at the end of Quarter 3 we were on course to meet the three
strategic priorities set out in the Corporate Plan. A report on key achievements and
performance is attached at Annex 1 (pages 3-9). Performance dashboards are
included at Annex 2 (pages 10-19).

3. Of the 24 outcomes being reported on this year, 20 were rated Green or Amber for
quarter 3. This was two more than in quarter 2 — an improvement, and quite a
healthy position to be in going into the latter half of the year.

4. Forthe 4 outcomes rated as Red (see pages 7-9) the relevant Directors’
recommendations to County Leadership Team (CLT) in February were that these
do not require discussion. CLT did not request further action on any of these
outcomes. All Red outcomes are set out on pages 7-9 with explanatory narrative.

5. Of the 65 supporting ‘success indicators’ in the performance dashboards, 5 had
improved since quarter 2 while 8 had deteriorated (which can be seen by
comparing the dashboards’ Q2 and Q3 columns). This slight net deterioration
should be seen in the context of the positive overall improvement to the outcomes
noted above. Overall, the picture is one of stability and cautious optimism.

6. The dashboards showed 6 success indicators rated as Red for quarter 3, which
was 3 fewer than the previous quarter. This was a slight net improvement,
although within this it should be noted that 1 of the 7 was newly Red in quarter 3
(indicator 14 deteriorating from Amber in quarter 2)

7. Looking into quarter 4, the ‘outlook’ column in the dashboards showed that in
quarter 3 the outlook for 21 of the 64 success indicators was “positive/improving”,
and 32 “stable”. Only 9 were judged to have a “negative/deteriorating” outlook.
Compared with quarter 2 this was a slight rise for “positive/improving” and
“negative/deteriorating”.

Business management in 2017-18

8. Activity to improve performance reporting and business management so far this
year has been welcomed by management teams and elected members. While this
is reassuring there remains considerable work to be done.

9. County Leadership Team (CLT) noted that the suite of outcomes and measures
used in 2016-17 would be reviewed as usual before the end of the year to consider

Page 69



their ongoing suitability for assessing progress towards our Corporate Plan
priorities. Any revised or new outcomes or measures would first be discussed at
CLT’s meeting on 19 April. We would also expect the review to inform the new
Corporate Plan drafting process and help to break down existing directorate silos.

10. The collation of performance data with data on other aspects of business
management — finance, staffing, contract/commercial performance and so on —is
in continuous development in order to provide a clearer picture of current business
for CLT and other audiences.

11. The “management dashboard”, trailed as a concept last Summer, remains an
ambition. We will collate a working proposal of this soon, based on the best
available real-time data on performance, finance, HR and commercial matters.

12. The process of gathering and collating performance data remains a largely manual
process. There is a need to improve the timeliness of data reaching CLT and other
audiences. An automated, digital solution could be the answer, though there are
also improvements which could be made to existing processes. The council’s
development of its Business Intelligence function will help to address these and
other related matters.

13. At its 22 February meeting CLT decided not to request a business management
report for quarter 4. In previous years a report on quarter 4 was prepared and
considered by management teams and Performance Scrutiny Committee, before
reaching Cabinet in mid-July. This year the council’s faster financial closedown
timetable will require that a summary of the whole year’s performance is included
in the Chief Finance Officer's name as part of the Annual Statement of Accounts
(to be styled as the “Narrative Report 2016-17”). This is due to be completed in
final draft by 19 May. As currently planned, this would not require the production of
performance dashboards (though all relevant data would still be available on
request in Directorates). CLT’s decision means that the Narrative Report will stand
as an account of the whole year’s performance at year end.

Recommendation

14.Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to note the performance set out in this report,
and the ongoing work to improve business management and reporting.

5 April 2017

Report by: lan Dyson, Assistant Chief Finance Officer (Assurance)
Contact Officer:  Steven Jones, Corporate Performance and Risk Manager
steven.fairhurstiones@oxfordshire.gov.uk 07932 318 890

Page 70



ANNEX 1 - PERFORMANCE REPORT

Section A: Key achievements against Corporate Plan priorities in this quarter

A thriving economy

We continue to see an increase in the number of interventions by the Trading
Standards team. The team has recently formed a new agreement with A&D
Instruments (a leading manufacturer of weighing and measuring equipment) and
regularly provides verification work.

Our premises, risk and protection team continue to improve on the number of fire
safety audits carried out, making significant progress since the start of the
reporting year. This is particularly pleasing considering the fact the team is
currently dealing with an increased volume of formal notices and prosecutions
they have issued (which take longer to complete than a fire safety audit). These
formal notices and prosecutions provide greater protection for the businesses of
Oxfordshire.

Trading Standards have a planned communication plan with local business
which is undertaken in Q2 and Q4. This will potentially result in an end of year
figure exceeding our target by almost double.

Protecting vulnerable people

We continue to surpass our targets on the number of people in Oxfordshire we
give advice to on services to keep then fit and healthy.

The number of people in a hospital bed awaiting social care has dropped from
30 at the end of March to 8 by the end of December. The latest nationally
available figures (for the end of November) show that in the last 12 months
social care delays across the country have risen by 36% whereas in Oxfordshire
they have halved.

The new reablement contract with Oxford University Hospital began on October
1%, The contract aims to increase the availability of reablement. Although not yet
at target levels the first quarter of the new contract saw a 38% increase in
reablement provided compared with the previous quarter and 32% more than for
the same quarter last year.

The council is working with over 1350 troubled families to turn their lives around
as part of the national troubled families initiative

Success indicators for the outcome “Ensuring children have a healthy start in
life” are all better than the national average

The percentage of alcohol users successfully completing treatment for alcohol
addiction continues to exceed the national average.

The annual target for fire prevention campaigns continues to exceed the target.
Our series of ‘Safe Drive Stay Alive’ presentations in November attracted 6,000
young people.

Our year-end target has already been achieved for the activities for children and
young adults run by the Trading Standards team

Page 71



e OFRS safety messages are still on track and campaigns are planned for the
remainder of the year to ensure that the target is met. We have been working
closely with the central communications team on winter campaigns including
anti-drink drive and winter safety which both reached a high volume of people.
Additionally our station-based social media activity (the mannequin challenge)
has reached over 13,024,677 views on Facebook so far.

Efficient public services

e There is a continuing trend in the reduction of primary fires from previous years.
Rescues from primary fires are quite uncommon, as most people tend to react to
smoke alarms and are able to leave the property of their own accord. This
reduction can also be attributed to our continued proactive risk reduction
activities in relation to safe and well visits in the home which amongst many
other things encourages people to make an effective escape plan.

e OFRS continues to exceed our target, by almost double, to attend medical
interventions due to our expansion of co-responding throughout the county.
Slade Park continues to attend the majority of these types of incident.

e OFRS continues to be above target for special service rescues. Primarily this is
in relation to rescues from road traffic collisions and the increase is due to a
growing population and more vehicles on our roads. For the forthcoming year we
will be focusing our road safety education activities on motorcyclists, cyclists and
young drivers aged 17-24. To assist with this we are forging relationships with
Thames Valley Advanced Motorcycles and Thames Valley police.

¢ \We have again achieved our response standards targets of sending a fire engine
to an incident in the quickest time possible, assisted by the successful
implementation of Thames Valley Fire Control Service and the effective
management of our assets by the Service Resource Management team.

Page 72



Section B: key issues currently affecting our ability to deliver our priorities

A thriving economy

The need to secure a step change in the delivery of new homes and jobs is both a
national and a local priority. In Oxfordshire alone, over 100,000 new homes are
planned for the 20 years to 2031. Commensurate with the scale of this challenge, the
last 3 years have seen a threefold increase in the volume of planning applications for
major new development in the county”.

This rapid growth in development activity, whilst clearly desirable from both an
economic and social perspective, has inevitably created much increased pressures on
the District Councils as local planning authorities and the County Council, particularly
in its capacities as the Highways and Education authority for Oxfordshire and a key
statutory consultee on planning applications.

Total Number of Major Planning Applications Received in Q3 (October-December)

300 -
250
200 Q3 Apps Received 2013/14
Q3 Apps Received 2014/15
150 4 PP /
M Q3 Apps Received 2015/16
100 - .
M Q3 Apps Received 2016/17
S0

0 + - - —_— - -
Q3 Apps Q3 Apps Q3 Apps Q3 Apps

Received Received Received Received
2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Additional resources have accordingly been brought in to certain services over the
past 2-3 years, and we have re-configured others, to help them contend with these
pressures, but with the volume of applications continuing to increase and financial
pressures imposing constraints on further service expansion conditions remain very
challenging.

Internal reviews have recently been carried out with the aim of streamlining and
expediting some of our internal procedures — for example, the “Single Response”
process which we use to co-ordinate our inputs to major planning consultations — and
we have also created a new project to help smooth the passage of the most
strategically-important development schemes through to the implementation stage.

We also continue to seek developer contributions to critical infrastructure, although
viability factors often moderate what we are able to secure and prioritisation then

! Applications on sites of >10 dwellings or >0.5ha employment/commercial space.

Page 73




becomes a necessity. Again, new charges on developers have been introduced — for
example, in relation to advice provided at the pre-application stage — which help to
defray some of the added costs that we face and we also look to negotiate “Planning
Performance Agreements” for the largest schemes which again generate a useful
income stream for the authority.

Finally, we continue to work closely with our District colleagues to identify further ways
in which we might look to improve our mutual engagement in the development
process and to secure the best outcomes for local residents and businesses.

Protecting vulnerable people
Demand continues to rise for services:

§ The number of adult safeguarding concerns rose by 38% on the previous
year from 20 each working day to 27

§ The number of requests for support for new clients has risen by 6% from 51
per working day last year to 54 per working day this year.

There is a lack of capacity in the care sector, which is particularly acute in the home
care sector.

Demand continues to rise for children’s services, most noticeably seen in the increase
in looked after children, whilst levels of early help are dropping.

Efficient public services

The growing number of children looked after has put significant pressure on the
budget and has also meant that the most vulnerable people can be placed further
away.

Page 74



Section C: key performance issues requiring intervention / decision.

The following narratives explain outcomes which Directors have rated “Red”. A Red
rating indicates that the outcome in question might not be achieved by year end as
things stand. Directors’ ratings may be based on a number of factors including levels
of performance and degree of risk.

1. | Corporate Plan priority | PROTECTING VULNERABLE PEOPLE

Support older people to live independently with dignity whilst

Outcome affected reducing the need for care & support

Dashboard details Success indicators 2-3 and 5

Success indicators 2-3

There is currently limited capacity in the care market, particularly within home care. This
means that people may end up in inappropriate services (e.g. delayed in hospital, delayed
in short term services such as reablement, or temporarily placed in care homes) and the
cost of care can be forced up, with demand outstripping supply.

1. Adult social care has a number of initiatives to address this including a workforce
strategy, the development of new contract models, focused reviews of cases to
reduce package size and the use of alternative service providers and services.

2. The temporary funding available through the additional 1.0% Adult Social Care
precept will be invested in improving capacity and resilience to respond to the
challenges of the care market and to enable system wide benefits. If agreed, part
of the funding would be used to grow, develop and build resilience in the external
care workforce and to transform the way that we work to be more effective, more
responsive and better able to meet the needs of the whole population of
Oxfordshire.

Success indicator 5

The new contract for reablement began on October 1%12016. It has successfully increased
the amount of reablement being delivered but the number of people who leave the service
needing no ongoing care has fallen. This reduction in people with no ongoing care needs
will increase demand on the care budget and place Oxfordshire in the bottom quartile on
the relevant national measure in the national framework for social care.

The council has a team which is reviewing the level of care of people coming out of the
service and is in active discussion with the service provider about how much care people
need with the expectation that more people will need no on-going care. We are working
with the provider to ensure appropriate people are referred to the service and it is not
used where people clearly will need permanent care.

Recommended action | No further action is recommended at this time.

Page 75




2, Corporate Plan priority | EFFICIENT PUBLIC SERVICES

Outcomes affected Reducing the level of need of our most vulnerable families

Dashboard details Success indicator 20

The number of children looked after in Oxfordshire has risen, from 592 at the start of the
year to 651 at the end of December. The average for similar authorities would be 600.
This is having an impact in the number of children placed out of county, which has risen
when the plan was for it to fall. This is also creating a significant budget pressure.

The increase in numbers of looked after children is directly related to the general increase
in activity in children's services. This is being addressed by a piece of work commissioned
with imPower to look at managing demand which has been sponsored by CLT.

The CEF directorate is working with the business support team analysing opportunities for
efficiencies in decision-making and allocation of placements, which is leading to the
establishment of a weekly panel chaired by a senior manager to oversee admissions to
care and prompt reunification with families or move to permanent placement.

A cross council placement strategy is in place to oversee the development of new in
county places (both residential and foster places) and ensures that people at the edge of
care are diverted from care where appropriate. Within this the council has signed up to a
national project to look at the cost of care for looked after children and how this can be
managed.

Further strands of work led by the Joint Commissioning Team are focussing on the quality
monitoring and contracting of placements, ensuring the Council is operating in the most
commercial and efficient way possible.

Recommended action | No further action is recommended at this time.

3. Corporate Plan

priority PROTECTING VULNERABLE PEOPLE

Outcome affected Narrowing the gap for our most disadvantaged and vulnerable groups

Dashboard details | Success indicators 12 and 14

Success indicator 12

The number of early help assessments (formerly known as Common Assessments) is
below the level of last year and below that of other authorities. The process for early help
will be changed from March this year within the transformation of children's services
programme, with the new Locality and Community Support Service Teams taking over
responsibility for supporting early help assessments.

Page 76




Levels and effectiveness of early help is included in the scope of work commissioned with
imPower to review how we manage demand in children's service

Success indicator 14

The number of permanent exclusions from Oxfordshire schools continues to increase.

We have developed a Children Missing Out on Education Strategy which includes routine
meetings of relevant stakeholders to review the impact of interventions on individual
cases. A School Quality Assurance Framework ensures that all schools are kept under
review and we are working with the Regional Schools Commissioner, contacting schools
where there is a specific concern.

Working with our existing Alternative Provision academy to enable expansion and
encouraging the creation of new Alternative Provision academies to increase range of
alternatives to permanent exclusion

Recommended action | No further action is recommended at this time.

4. Corporate Plan
priority A THRIVING ECONOMY

Outcome affected 20,000 businesses are given advice and support to grow

Dashboard details Success indicator 59

The target for this measure was set based on historical figures. This year we have seen a
reduction in Building Regulations consultations and a reduction in requests for business
advice from the Trading Standards team. These changes have impacted on progress
towards this measure. The trend for this reporting year has remained below what was
predicted and is not likely to reach the expected figure at the end of March 2017. If this
trend continues we will be planning proactive work to increase our contacts with
businesses and to promote the services we can provide to help businesses grow.

We have responded to all building regulations consultations received within target
timescales.

Recommended action | No further action is recommended at this time.

Page 77




CORPORATE PLAN 2016-17 PRIORITIES AND OUTCOMES, BY DIRECTORATE

ANNEX 2 - PERFORMANCE DASHBOARDS

o 20,000 businesses Raising achievement An Infrastructure High-quality jobs, and Funding for public OCC’s Highways are
given advice an or all children an rategy for a skilled workforce, services is responsibilities for adequately
g i dvi d for all child d Strategy f killed kfi i i ibilities f d tel
.;3 support to grow young people Oxfordshire is are created and maximised spatial planning are maintained
o delivered sustained executed
OFRS CEF E&E E&E
( ) ( ) (E&E) (E&E) ( ) (E&E) ( )
85,000 children 37,500 To deliver 1.6 Ensuring Preventing | Preventing | Narrowing the Keeping Adults with long Support older
and young adults vulnerable million specific | children have | early death chronic gap for our children term conditions people to live
(to include children and safety a healthy and disease by most and young living independently
re) looked after adults helped messages to start in life improving tackling disadvantaged | people safe | independently and | with dignity
children) to be to lead more contribute (PH) quality of obesity and vulnerable (CEF) achieving their full whilst
better educated secure and towards life in later (PH) groups potential reducing the
to lead safer and independent promoting a years (CEF) (SCS)’ need for care
Q)| healthier lives lives, safer (PH) & support
(00) (OFRS) supported by community,_ (SCS)
safe and across all social
wellbeing visits | media platforms
(OFRS) (OFRS)
6,000 more people When a fire occurs Reducing the Working together to Household waste is Year on year Communities are
o | alive as a result of our | we aim to send the level of need of improve quality and value | disposed of efficiently reduction in OCC'’s helped to help
g prevention, protection | nearest fire engine our most for money in the Health and effectively carbon equivalent themselves
-g and emergency in the quickest time vulnerable and Social Care System emissions
o response activities possible families (CEF) (E&E) (Corp Services)
(OFRS) (OFRS) (e (25




SOCIAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICES - PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD - Quarter 3 2016-17

Outlook

3
(O] 3
< 4
o () o ®
g c
,,,,,,,,,, <
<
() a
< £
14 (V] (U] >
[}
N c
(e} 2
oz
>
mW
£ > z z z > > z > >
= &
S ®
(S 3
e o o
) o o
<) S o N S X o X X X
= . « I o o 0 < It} 7o)
© o © e © ~ < N N
- I -
3
(2] ex - N )}
© oo c = ~ 3
+ &= N o [} ] o =~
Qe o< O~ IS < S = I3 =
Q. = O O) — ) bt o (@]
o O = o = > c
o - = — £ =
= [SIN] < N Q~ |2 + = c
y— o © = 0 o [ Qo o) 3
= - a o o W
o o6 [ N | 5 = g =) =
%) o o< o — Q » 2> 8C c
© » T & £= = 7] ) O C
o o5 S £ ) Q c? | oaw [}
st ne ° 9N <L (7] = C S £ ©
© = o X a o n =] o ®
5 22| 8 | 88| £ ® » | €5 £
S ® = Ke) © =
5] =2 | 89 | s | & o o® | 8¢ ©
Pel T ®© o c © E O ) o
] 0]
@ o | €5 | 290 |© o 25| 8o =
—_ = =
- 9 S| 9= | 93 | @ T TO | =© S
[e] = [elye] cC o S = c 5 » = >
= > @+ (L S0 | o bS] = 2 o 2]
1] © o w c - o b} D o= 1) <
(%) © T -~ = (0] o) [T nn Kl
= S s hli To) © >N il »
T T . c WA © — c - o= R
= © X o c QS - KO I = £ o T e o
P c o oo | g5 | a¥ |2 > >E | 25 ©
7] o= > O o_ | € © [T m X )
Q T © o= o3 Qo0 |5 19 o= | > ©
o cc T 4= = n > © = S0 S B
=] = o ©° o c o o n ~ € & .|% =]
(%) o 5 25 S5 =20) o o S ® o0 o
‘S Q= O & S a LS o] c o c
c o) = < [0 o = & =
© [0 B n > M — P o ke
(= 8o oL 155 |9 °o | ® | Fc ©
2= w— C nm « O (5 ..mz O © S5 ®© >
oL o+ o8 oc | O cE| €0 oo [S)
S c® | £ 2 5= | =9 | 88| &
o - o ox mo o o “— © Y—
-y © o o5 n - @© @©
oo o S < = O »n < 7]
o= € ® oo S Ew [T) .
= 'c u 2> =) So| =2 | =5 =
(O] 3 0 Q= O — () c © = =] =]
5 E S| e |l s |2 | 2| 28 |82 3
o £ 298| = o |9 £ o | ®& ©
o < = o] (o) [ = O o~ Y =3 —
o 8 =9 o D S| a o= o o © ©
o Q n »n © u— N w0 »n QO w— O u—
o6 SS © o © =z | O © — © O I = [9)
S c L | 58| SE (8% SR | §2 | ®RE| RQ
o ® =] S © | oo ) re} 0 ®
N a x o £a fEao|oN| £ | £ N~ 2 ~ O
-~ o~ ) < 15) © ~ © o
T = n o = > -
20 E3 co>288 g2, %
o | 88 S=_ me.mmw 2SS828E
=5 =0T - - 3 s
E | E5oEsSs cod3>2a 2°8c5®
o TS ecoxc pe s S 03=T 5
8 255828 62 g E % 238 3&P
= nwno=cLEh 2 oodDco nrvnhe
O | £g 832 209TQCaw £2T 6=
= e.w 30T 350 = £ C =
%22 TS NoESDT o SEsEZO
] z
£8 3298 =2 =
31d03d 3T79VHINTNA ONILO310 n.@.@

JIAY3S JIT79Nnd LN3I101443

« the outlook is stable

| the outlook is negative/deteriorating

1 the outlook is positive/improving

OUTLOOK KEY:

11



CHILDREN EDUCATION AND FAMILIES - PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD - Quarter 3 2016-17

. Cumulative
Outcome Success Indicator Target Target Y/N Q2 RAG | Q3 RAG Outlook

THRIVING
ECONOMY

Raising achievement
for all children and 10
young people

% of schools judged good or outstanding by OFSTED to be in top
quartile nationally by 2018.

92% N

Increase the number of troubled families worked with by the council from
915in 2015/16 to 1,549 in 2016/17 and 2892 by 2020.

Narrowing the gap | 15 Increase the number of community Common Assessment Frameworks
for our most (CAFs) completed from 770 in 2015/16 to 847 in 2015/16

disadvantaged and 13 | Persistent absence rates to be in the top quartile nationally by 2018 for
vulnerable groups secondary schools (figures available annually in July)

11 1549 Y

847 Y

Thc N

A

14 | Permanent exclusions to remain in the top quartile nationally <48 N

PRO%T@@?@.NERABLE PEOPLE

NN

Rty

Set a baseline for caseloads in different teams and reduce this in the Varies
year to best practice levels by team

Increase the proportion of referrals dealt with within timescales to 75%
Keeping children and by March 2017
young people safe 17 Increase the Proportion of assessments completed in 40 working days to
75% by March 2017

18 Increase the proportion of interviews of missing children completed on ) v

15

>

AU - NN

MRS

NNy
NNty
iy
NNy
NNy
ity

iy
iy
SR RN
A Y

AL

>

L

16 75% N

R
\
\
\
\
N
N
\
3
N
X

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
W
A Y

A Y
A Y
A Y
A Y
A Y
A Y
A A L Y

8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8

N

N

N

N

N

N

N

N

N

N

N

N

N

N

N

R

R

R

R

R

RN

RN

R

R

DRI

R

.

RN

i

RN

RN
NN
N
N
N
N

RN R - AN

AN
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

Z

7 5 % Y /////%/////////

i
T .
i
IRRLEA N
RN

EFFICIENT
PUBLIC SERVICES

A
700000
700
//%///////// 2 A/
9 . 4

74 - s

% 700007
0000
0000
7000
gL i
7

17777
1777
1777
1777
777
1777
1777
17
1777
1777
i
0,777

time

135 by
19 | Recruiting 135 unrelated foster carers over the next three years March Y
2019

MR
AR .

N
Y

>

NS

i

i

AR

AR

R

N

R

AR .

WA

RN

N TR
O
T
T
T
T
O
T
N
T A

Z
Z
Z
Z
Z
Z
Z
7

7
Z
Z
Z
Z
Z
Z
Z
Z
Z
Z
Z
Z

Z
2
77
77
77
77
777
777
777
777
777
777
777
77
77
77
77
777

S
N
N
nnn
nnn
nnn
N
i
DR N

NN

Reducing the level of

need of our most ) .
vulnerable families Reduce the number of children placed out of county and not in

20 | neighbouring authorities from 77 to 60 by March 2016 60 N

OUTLOOK KEY: 1 the outlook is positive/improving | the outlook is negative/deteriorating > the outlook is stable
12



ENVIRONMENT AND ECONOMY - PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD - Quarter 3 2016-17

L Cumulative
Outcome Success indicator Target Target Y/N Q2 RAG | Q3 RAG | Outlook
- [v)
An Infrastructure A prioritised infrastructure strategy providing Q1 - Strategy Scoped (5%) o/n.
Strategy for a framework that enables the county's Q2 - Procurement underway (10%);
g 21 - Q3 - Consultant appointed and Stage Y G G <>
Oxfordshire is planned growth will be produced by March 1 complete (50%);
Ll 2017. Q4 - Strategy work complete (100%)
2 Oxfordshire is chosen for 35 new investors / re-investors, 14 of which are 35/ 14 Y
High-quality jobs, ‘high value’ (as defined in OXLEP contract) T
> and a skilled
= workforce, are o3 | We participate in 15 funding bids for innovation submitted to support the 3 per v G G
= created and Smart Oxford programme year T
o sustained
2
24 | 525 additional apprenticeship starts are delivered 525 Y e |G| 1
Value of monies secured in s106 / s278 agreements as a % of requirements o Available
= 25 | . o 8 80% Y PARN
(00) Funding for public identified through the Single Response process soon
- services is
maximised 2 | No more than 20% of s106 monies are held within 2 years of potential <20% v G Available PN
payback soon
80% of District Council planning applications are responded to within the o
occ’s 27| agreed deadiine 80% v 6 T
responsibilities for
spatial planning
are executed 28 | 50% of Mineral and Waste applications are determined within 13 weeks 50% Y G G T

OUTLOOK KEY:

1 the outlook is positive/improving

| the outlook is negative/deteriorating

« the outlook is stable

13




ENVIRONMENT AND ECONOMY - continued

Cumulative

Outcome Success indicator Target | Target Y/N Q2 RAG | Q3 RAG | Outlook
29 % of highway defects posing an immediate risk of injury are repaired within 100% N G G PN
24 hours
. % of highway defects that create a potential risk of injury repaired within 28 o
H;%';‘;"Sgtsela;e 30 | calendar days 90% N = e >
maintained 41 | % of the A and B Classified road network where carriageway maintenance 28% N
should be considered. °
E 32 | 59% of household waste is reused, recycled or composted 59% N
;% Household waste
is disposed of
('% efficiently and
B effectively 44 | % of waste from Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRC) which is 60% N
Y recycled ?
4
T
|_
Year on year
reduction in o . L
, Average 3% year on year reduction in carbon equivalent emissions from o
oggu?v(;?;g?n 35 Oxfordshire County Council estates and activities 1% Y = = <>
emissions
OUTLOOK KEY: 1 the outlook is positive/improving | the outlook is negative/deteriorating > the outlook is stable

14




PUBLIC HEALTH — PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD - Quarter 3 2016-17

. Cumulative
Outcome Success Indicator Target Target Y/N Q2 RAG | Q3 RAG Outlook
36 Conceptions in women aged under 18 per 1,000 females aged 15-17 <=16.8 Y G G
(teenage conceptions). This reflects calendar year 2015 (189) T
Q1 55%
37 Percentage of mothers who receive a universal face to face contact at 28 | Q2 60% N G G
weeks or above Q3 62% >
E Q4 65%
o
(@)
o : . e 93-95%
Percentage of births that receive a face to face New Birth Visit (NBV)
i 38 | within 10-14 days by a Health Visitor (each N «
= ys by quarter)
é
z Ensuring 39 Percelnttage of births that receive a face to face New Birth Visit (NBV) 95% N G G PN
2 children have a complete
o healthy start in 93.95%
4 life i i i ~J9 70
K:g E 40 | Percentage of children who received a 12 month review cach 1/4 N G G PARN
(0] i
EB 8 41 | Percentage of children who received a 2-2.5 year review 22&?15,0//" N G G PARN
n- 4
42 | Percentage of infants for whom breastfeeding status is recorded at 6-8 95.0% N G G —>
week check
Babies breastfed at 6-8 weeks of age (County). No individual CCG o
43 locality should have a rate of less than 55%) 63.0% N >
44 | % of Mothers who received a Maternal Mood Review in line with the local | 93.0% N G G
pathway by the time the infant is aged 8 weeks. I
OUTLOOK KEY: 1 the outlook is positive/improving | the outlook is negative/deteriorating > the outlook is stable

15




PUBLIC HEALTH - continued

X
o
= IR B AR A
=
=}
o
Q
<
14 (G) (U] O
3
Q
<
14 (G) (U] O
o
)
>Z
=
=R > > > > > > > > >
=
oFr
S| T o
ST O~~~ —~] xX| o
. BhoricT TS = oo S| =&
o ° o [ We We Wse] = o ®© X 23 By
[ S ORTIT OO~ BN Om T < 2
= 8 | ongeamyl 2 E| «ORE |y 8B
© ®o (IO © |2295 [V (|LY ©
[ ~ £ NS0~ & SSoO2E | NOOR2 LS| XS
° B L A 0 o= G o = 0 O o
N ) i)l XD [« o| N=
0 ©Z |[saaxzaex N | IRgs | NS5aS o> o®
- NS |[OCCCOCCC| A AOLLe | veo<l [ RA©| ©»c
> Y
—— o [0]
= . ke >
© kel ) Q Q- c =t
w0 O _® T = 2 0 c.= 2 05
=9 T 2 Z = @ E T » @ Eo
NG §® = 5] 9 >890 Q@&
30 = (] ° o S=5 3Lo9 <
o a% - o . o C u..ln o
) c = put > n o0 o ®» O %=
8o > - © =1 N e 20 £
cz .| 8¢ 9] = o 8 =3 e = ®
o -E — ~| Q®a c o
ST R| 05 = S0 |60 | 000 g3 o
ey | OX (7] (L] = = Eow =
¥8Q| Xio 9 £ |[2o|0ts =0k =
—
© 2o 0w < xo |07 |l ® a2 c
Soo| 2e o eI g ol 5= 5
2|82 |5 | 60 |<&|E%E |2:-8 2
D0 B2 F £ x vso|loQCE 2% >
— e.na SaO/ N~ Im as s - =+ C pd
) €53 | ¥52 | & %..& 08 o b 3 [T i -
S | 593|388 |Q | &% |29/925 |28y s
© “8 ol cw5| o © S sl 550 T o o0 L
o
T LG58 | Oxc| O o8 |oW|ELS =T D o
> | 8% | £Tg| © 2% |o=|o5% |B2% s
[} o © T o - = = © w < =
D c ot |[ER|TCco Q »
S 027 %.mb S Og |XJ|£ 0O _Nwlm c 2
§ | egs IsT|E | %8 (22088 3B | g X
o} o
5 © 2R %nw S 0= 5 Eow OCw o ©
2 2zve | z8¢g0| & 8% 23|55S |23 g8
= ~N=108 c¢ |£€21ZL>5 c ®©
Soc| 5oz & oc |Ex|laoe |Q0 - 8| 2
(] w (] = 7))
NI w S| Q@ £ o S O9w® NWh _ o
To*=| Su Q| 2 =5 T2 e S o c 35 > | s
S 9| 206 | D 03 |0o|°8 S5 % | @
Sob o | B8 = Q@ Q2 ¢ c o
S23| 8T > © aC |52/ 254 |2°%E0| §| &
o055 | 29T x| 82 |[8T|aes |9ZC0E| 8| S
ODgs| £E5 0 <0 [ % o] own|l>S0Cc SO © > O ~
aeo w0 « O — = w ® | T 0 — D=0 [} —
e|% o = o < °g 00| o0ow E<|OE LS .. 20
a®e| 20| =0 . co|=2 55|25 ¢c| §| 4T
o .o| oo @ o < O- |00 0535 | aF
Sw2| 28 o £ S |91 (QLcE|2%9cn| 2| 8
Q= 3 [l @] [ [=it= EV | EDEE|E o E = S Q0O
T O| X0 ® - £ ®© O ® © S
“— 0 @ > O S5 O S un So | S22 o0 | S - own = 3
O | FH®Z| ZT Z® |[ZN|ZT2ZE5|ZEwc>5| < | 0
0 © ~ ©
< < < < 2 3 o S B
=
o Sooge
c C =
m ganl a
o c > 4= 0
o =c 0 0 >
- ttryr
=) S ool o
[ 2] =
o >SEFs
o =]
o o

ml_n_Omn_ml_mmZJD _._.Ow._.ON_n_
age g4

« the outlook is stable

| the outlook is negative/deteriorating

1 the outlook is positive/improving

OUTLOOK KEY:

16



PUBLIC HEALTH - continued

Outcome Success Indicator Target %’:;Lé'ta\triﬁ Q2 RAG | Q3 RAG | Outlook
5 54 National Childhood Measurement Programme (NCMP) - obesity prevalence Maintain N G G
ﬂ in Reception year <7% >
4
L
=z . National Childhood Measurement Programme (NCMP) - obesity prevalence g0
Juw Preventing |55 oo 6" No district population should record more than 19% <=16% N G 7
S a| chronic disease
% 8 by tackling National Childhood Measurement Programme (NCMP) - % of all children
2o i - .
5 Ll %6 measured in Reception (coverage) 90% N “ “ A
1]
|_
o National Childhood Measurement Programme (NCMP) - % of all children o
E 57 measured in Year 6 (coverage) 90% N “ “ A
EORPORATE SERVICES - PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD - Quarter 3 2016-17
Q
@ Cumulativ
(00] Outcome Success Indicator Target e Target Q2 RAG Q3 RAG | Outlook
(@) Y/N
Communities are
encouraged to . . . . . .
help themselves OCC effectively uses a variety of mechanisms including active
with support from participation in the democratic system, being part of Town and Parish
the County Councils, volunteering in their local community and receiving support
Council, 58 | from the providers of the Council’s Voluntary & Community Sector - N G G >

EFFICIENT PUBLIC
SEERVICES

strengthening the

role of individual
citizens and
communities

Infrastructure Contract. Also through direct service delivery under the
Oxfordshire Together programme and using communications and
services facilitated by OCC libraries.

OUTLOOK KEY:

1 the outlook is positive/improving

| the outlook is negative/deteriorating

« the outlook is stable

17




OXFORDSHIRE FIRE & RESCUE SERVICE - PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD - Quarter 3 2016-17

Outcome

Success Indicator

Target

Cumulative
Target Y/N

THRIVING
ECONOMY

20,000 businesses
given advice and
support to grow

59

833 businesses given advice and support, per quarter.

833

PROTECTING VULNERABSEBRQPLE

85,000 children and
young adults (to
include looked after
children) to be better
educated to lead safer
and healthier lives

60

3,542 children and young adults to be better educated to lead safer
and healthier lives, per quarter

3,542

Q2 RAG | Q3 RAG | Outlook

37,500 vulnerable
children and adults
helped to lead more

secure and
independent lives,
supported by safe and
wellbeing visits

61

1,562 vulnerable children and adults helped to lead more secure and
independent lives, supported by safe and wellbeing visits per quarter

1,562

To deliver 1.6 million
specific safety
messages to
contribute towards
promoting a safer
community, across all
social media
platforms

62

To deliver 66,666 specific safety messages across all social media
platforms, per quarter.

66,666

OUTLOOK KEY:

1 the outlook is positive/improving

| the outlook is negative/deteriorating

« the outlook is stable

18




OXFORDSHIRE FIRE & RESCUE SERVICE - continued

. Cumulative
Outcome Success Indicator Target Target Y/N Q2 RAG | Q3 RAG | Outlook
o 6,000 more people
w | alive as a result of our : ; ;
g prevention, protection | 63 250 more people alive a? e_lt.result of ourrt prevention, protection and 250 v G G PN
Z and emergency emergency response activities per quarter
i response activities
77}
1)
@ 80% of Il attend tob de within 11 minut
5 o of emergency call attendances to be made within 11 minutes,
& | When a fire occurs we | per quarter 80% Y G G <>
e aim to send the
w nearest fire engine in
T | the quickest time 95% of Il attend to be made within 14 minut
ey possible 65 o of emergency call attendances to be made within 14 minutes, 95% v G G PR
a per quarter
Q
(4]
(00}
\l
OUTLOOK KEY: 1 the outlook is positive/improving | the outlook is negative/deteriorating > the outlook is stable

19




Page 88



Agenda ltem 12

Division(s): N/A

CABINET - 25 APRIL 2017
FORWARD PLAN AND FUTURE BUSINESS

Items identified from the Forward Plan for Forthcoming Decision

Topic/Decision Portfolio/Ref

Cabinet, 23 May 2017

S Appointments 2017/18 Cabinet, Leader
To consider member appointments to a variety of bodies which 2017/002

in different ways support the discharge of the Council’'s

Executive functions.

S Staffing Report - Quarter 4 - 2016 Cabinet, Deputy
Quarterly staffing report providing details of key people numbers Leader
and analysis of main changes since the previous report. 2016/147

Cabinet Member for Environment, 18 May 2017

S Proposed Traffic Calming Amendments, Waiting Cabinet Member
Restrictions and Zebra Crossing - Bankside, Banbury for Environment,
To seek approval of the proposals. 2016/118
§ Proposed Amendments to Parking - Worcester Place, Cabinet Member
Oxford for Environment,
To seek approval of the proposals. 2016/096
S Proposed Waiting Restrictions - Various Roads, Cabinet Member
Bicester for Environment,
To seek approval of the proposals. 2016/094
S New Disabled Bays in West Oxfordshire and Cabinet Member
Developer Funded Changes to Parking Restrictions in for Environment,
Oxford 2017/010
To seek approval of the proposals.
S Proposed Additional Car Club Bays - Oxford Cabinet Member
To seek approval of the proposals. for Environment,
2017/033

Page 89



CA12

Cabinet Member for Finance, 8 May 2017

S Transition Fund - May 2017 Cabinet Member
To approve the panel recommendations for grant funding pump for Finance,
priming to support open access children’s services. 2017/031

Cabinet Member for Public Health, 24 May 2017

S Drug and Alcohol Education Service Cabinet Member
To seek approval of the exemption to CPRs to enable the for Public Health,
extension of the contract for Drug and Alcohol Education in 2017/037
schools provided by The Training Effect for a period of 15

months from 1 January 2018 until 31 March 2019.

Page 90



	Agenda
	6 Communities Fund
	CA_APR2517R09 Annex 1 Communities Fund - Grant Guidance
	CA_APR2517R10 Communities Fund - Annex 2 Grant Application
	CA_APR2517R08 Communities Fund - Annex 3 Amended TOR

	7 2016/17 Financial Monitoring & Business Strategy Delivery Report - February 2017
	Corporate Annexes cabinet 25 February 2017

	8 Adopt Thames Valley
	9 Fit for Future Progress Report
	10 Business Management & Monitoring Report for Quarter 3 - April 2017
	12 Forward Plan and Future Business

